
City of Palmer 
Regular City Council Meeting 

7 pm, Tuesday, September 13, 2016 
Palmer City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 

Clerk’s Office: 907-761-1301 
www.cityofpalmer.org

Page 1 of 510

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


Page 2 of 510



City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

7 pm Tuesday, September 13, 2016 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.cityofpalmer.org 

Agenda 

Mayor DeLena Johnson  
Deputy Mayor Brad Hanson 
Council Member Richard Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Linda Combs 
Council Member Edna DeVries 
Council Member Pete LaFrance 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Approval of Agenda
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Introduction of Ordinance No. 16-007: Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Sections
10.04.120 Parking of Trailers and Recreational Vehicles Restricted and 10.04.130
Utility Connections Prohibited (IM 16-036) ........................................ Page  7 

b. Action Memorandum No. 16-056: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and
Execute an Agricultural Lease with Robert Shumaker for a Parcel of Land Containing
Approximately 2.39 Acres of Airport Land Described as Lots 4 & 5 Mohan Subdivision
Located on Outer Springer Loop ....................................................... Page 11 

c. Action Memorandum No. 16-062: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and
Execute an Assumption of Proprietary Lease from the Estate of John H. Riggs to
Gary A. and Odette M. Jamieson for Palmer Hangars Owners Association Unit No. 2
Lot 11 Block 3 at the Palmer Municipal Airport ................................... Page 21 

d. Action Memorandum No. 16-063: Approving Board Member John Lee’s
Resignation from the Board of Economic Development ...................... Page 59 

2. Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. August 23, 2016, Regular Meeting .................................................... Page 63 

E. Communication and Appearance Requests
1. Airport Advisory Commission

F. Reports
1. City Manager’s Report ........................................................................... Page 71 
2. City Clerk’s Report
3. Mayor’s Report
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. Audience Participation

H. Public Hearings
1. Resolution No. 16-023: A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Accepting and

Appropriating $6,543.48 From the City of Houston to Provide Emergency Dispatch Services
for the Period of July 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016 (IM 16-037) ... Page 79

Page 3 of 510

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


I. Action Memoranda

J. Unfinished Business

K. New Business
1. Resolution No. 16-024: A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Adopting the City of 

Palmer Wastewater Facility Plan 2016 Update, Developed by HDR Alaska, Inc. (IM 16-
39) .................................................................................................... Page 97

L. Record of Items Placed on the Table 

M. Audience Participation

N. Council Member Comments

O. Executive Session
1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person – City

Manager (Note: Personnel action may be taken following the executive session)

P. Adjournment

Tentative 2016 Palmer City Council Meetings: 

Meeting Date Meeting Type Time Notes 

September 27 Regular 7 pm 

October 3 Special 7 pm Joint BED & Guest  
Former Gov. Parnell 

October 10 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

October 11 Regular 7 pm 

October 18 Special 6 pm 2017 Budget 

October 25 Special 6 pm 2017 Budget 

October 25 Regular 7 pm 

November 1 Special 6 pm 2017 Budget 

November 8 Special 6 pm 2017 Budget 

November 8 Regular 7 pm 

November 22 Special 6 pm 2017 Budget 

November 22 Regular 7 pm 

November 29 Special 6 pm 2017 Budget 

December 6 Special 6 pm 2017 Budget 

December 13 Regular 7 pm 

Page 4 of 510



consent 
agenda 
consent 
agenda 

Page 5 of 510



 

Page 6 of 510



 
Page 1 of 2                  IM 16-036 
 
 
 

City of Palmer  
Information Memorandum No. 16-036 

Ordinance No. 16-007 
 
Subject:  Ordinance No. 16-007: Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Sections 10.04.120 Parking of 
Trailers and Recreational Vehicles Restricted and 10.04.130 Utility Connections Prohibited 
 
Agenda of:  September 13, 2016 
 
Council Action: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager  

Date: August 16, 2016  Requested agenda date: September 13, 2016 
 

Department Information: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

X  Finance   8-22-16 

X  Public Safety   8-16-16 

  Public Works     

 
 
 
 
 

 

Approved for presentation by: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0 
 

This legislation (√): 
X Has no fiscal impact  Creates a positive impact in the amount of: $  

  Negative impact in the amount of: $  
 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted Affected line item(s):  

 

General fund assigned balance (after requested budget modification): $  

Enterprise unrestricted net position (after requested budget modification): $  
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 7 of 510



 
Page 2 of 2                  IM 16-036 
 
 
 

Attachment(s):    
 Ordinance No. 16-007 

 
Summary Statement: Ordinance No. 16-007 is presented to the Palmer City Council at the City 
Manager’s request. 
 
Proposed Ordinance No. 16-007 restricts the parking of all trailers and recreational vehicles on 
streets within the City of Palmer between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., excluding 
Fridays from 10:00 p.m. through Mondays at 8:00 a.m.  It also prohibits utility connections to 
trailers or other vehicles if such connections cross public rights of way. 
 
 
Administration Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance No. 16-007. 

Page 8 of 510



___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska Ordinance No. 16-007 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

Ordinance No. 16-007 

An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Sections 
10.04.120 Parking of Trailers and Recreational Vehicles Restricted and 10.04.130 
Utility Connections Prohibited 

THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is permanent in nature and shall be incorporated 
into the Palmer Municipal Code. 

Section 2. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Section 10.04.110 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

10.04.120 Parking of Trailers Restricted 
A. No trailer or recreational vehicle of any sort shall be parked on any city street, alley, or right

of way from 10:00 p.m. through 8:00 a.m.

B. This section does not apply from Friday evenings at 10:00 p.m. through Monday mornings at
8:00 a.m.

C. A violation of this section is an offense punishable by the fine established in the current,
adopted budget.

10.04.130 Utility Connections to Vehicles Prohibited 
A. No person shall permit, cause, or allow any electrical, water, gas, telephone or other utility

connection (such as electrical cords, extension cords, hoses, cables, or other items) to
encroach into any public right of way including across or above any street or sidewalk from a
residential or commercial property, or a generator, to a vehicle.

B. A violation of this section is an offense punishable by the fine established in the current,
adopted budget.

Introduced by: Mayor Johnson 
Date: September 13, 2016 

Public Hearing: September 27, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 
Yes: No: 

Page 9 of 510



___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska Ordinance No. 16-007 

Page 2 of 2 

Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 16-007 shall take effect upon adoption by the 
City of Palmer City Council.  

Passed and approved this 27th day of September, 2016. 

_______________________________ 
DeLena Johnson, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 10 of 510



 
Page 1 of 2                 AM 16-056 
 
 
 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 16-056 

 
Subject: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an Agricultural Lease with 
Robert Shumaker for a Parcel of Land Containing Approximately 2.39 Acres of Airport Land 
Described as Lots 4 & 5 Mohan Subdivision Located on Outer Springer Loop.  
 
Agenda of: September 13, 2016   
 
Council Action: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent  

Date: August 11, 2016  Requested agenda date: September 13, 2016 
 

Department Information √: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

X  Finance   8/11/16 

  Fire Department    

  Police Department    

  Public Works     

 
 
 
 

 

Approved for presentation by: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 241.38 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Has no fiscal impact X Creates a positive impact in the amount of: $ 241.38 

  Creates a negative impact in the amount of: $  
 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
X Not budgeted Affected line item(s): 03-00-00-3432 
 

General fund unassigned balance (after requested budget modification): $  

Enterprise unrestricted net position (after requested budget modification): $  
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 11 of 510



Page 2 of 2 AM 16-056

Attachment(s): 
 Proposed Lease Agreement
 Property Maps

Summary Statement:  This action memorandum authorizes the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute an agricultural lease with Mr. Shumaker to perform agricultural operations on 2.39 acres 
of airport land, of which said agricultural products are not by nature, bird attractants, and enacts 
very strict “Use of Property” language. 

Mr. Robert Shumaker would like to lease approximately 2.39 acres of City of Palmer agricultural 
land located off the Outer Springer Loop across from the Golf Course.  Mr. Shumaker will not 
plant crops this year and has agreed to keep the weeds plowed under until next spring when 
planting can begin. 

The original proposed lease from May, 2013, was negotiated with Mr. Berberich but never 
executed due to a misunderstanding and inconsistent lease language. The lease rate of $101.00 
per acre is based upon the Fair Market Rent for agricultural properties at the airport, as 
determined by the real estate appraisal completed by Follett & Associates in July, 2010. 

The agricultural leases at the airport are recognized in the 2009 Palmer Airport Master Plan as a 
source of airport revenue and are in agreement with the Federal Aviation Administration Sponsor 
Assurance #6, “Consistent with Local Plans”. 

Palmer Municipal Code 3.20.090 allows for a two years or less lease without notice requirement. 
The term of this lease is for two years.      

Administration Recommendation: Authorize Action Memorandum No. 16-056. 

Page 12 of 510



1 

AGRICULTURAL LEASE AGREEMENT 

This is a lease between Robert Shumaker, DBA Black Bear Farms, hereinafter “Lessee”, 
whose address is 12501 Marsh Rd., Palmer, AK. 99645, and CITY OF PALMER, an Alaska Municipal 
Corporation, hereinafter, “Lessor”, whose address is 231 W. Evergreen, Palmer, Alaska 99645. 

1. Property and Rent.  The property leased hereby is described as follows:  Lots 4 and 5,
Mohan Subdivision, containing 2.39 acres, as illustrated in Exhibit A attached hereto
and incorporated herein. The rent shall be $101.00 per acre per year, or $241.38. This
shall be paid in annual payments of $241.38, per the following schedule: At the
execution of this lease, the Lessee agrees to pay the lease payment for the 2017
agricultural growing season.  Lessee then agrees to pay the annual rent on or before
December 1, 2017 for the 2018 agricultural growing season.  This lease rate is based
upon the Fair Market Rent for agricultural properties at the airport, as determined by
the real estate appraisal completed by Follett & Associates, July 2010 with a bid
proposal from another party submitted to the City April 24, 2013 and not executed.

2. Term. The term of this lease is from December 1, 2016 until November 30, 2018.

3. Use of Property.  The Property shall be used only for the growing and harvesting
of agricultural products or hay, which are not in nature, considered bird
attractants.  If under the sole opinion of the City of Palmer, said crops result
in a bird attractant and are detrimental to Palmer Municipal Airport and
aviation activities, at Lessees expense, Lessee will till agricultural crops
under within seven (7) days written notice.  Lessee understands that No
appeal of this decision is possible.  The Property shall not be used for any other
purpose. 

4. Operations on Property.  All operations conducted on the Property by the Lessee as
incidents of use specified in paragraph 3 of this lease shall be conducted by the Lessee
in accordance with the best course of agricultural stewardship practiced. Should the
Lessee fail to take any action required by said best course of agricultural stewardship
or should the Lessee fail to conduct any operation undertaken by him on the Property
in accordance with said best course of agricultural stewardship, the Lessor may, after
serving ten (10) days written notice of such failure on the Lessee in the manner
provided for service of notices in this lease, terminate this lease.

5. Waste or Nuisance.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission by others
any waste, petroleum products, or the release of any hazardous material on the
Property; the Lessee shall not maintain, commit, or permit the maintenance or
commission of any nuisance on the Property; and the Lessee shall not use or permit
the use of the Property for any unlawful purpose. The Lessee shall not maintain any
equipment or conduct any repairs on the Property.

6. Insurance Hazards.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission of any
hazardous acts on the Property nor use or permit the use of the Property in any
manner that will increase the existing rates for or cause the cancellation of any
insurance policy insuring the Property. The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense,

Page 13 of 510



 

2 
 

comply with any and all requirements of Lessor’s insurance carriers necessary for the 
continued maintenance at reasonable rates of reasonable insurance on the Property.  

 
7. Maintenance.  The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense, keep and maintain the 

Property in good order and in as safe and clean a condition as they were when received 
by him from the Lessor. 

 
8. Alterations and Liens.  The Lessee shall not make or permit any other person to make 

any alterations to the Property or to any improvement thereon or facility appurtenant 
thereto without the written consent of the Lessor first had and obtained. The Lessee 
shall keep the premises free and clear from any and all liens, claims, and demands for 
work performed, materials furnished, or operations conducted thereon at the instance 
or request of Lessee.  

 
9. Inspection by Lessor.  The Lessee shall permit the Lessor or Lessor’s agents, 

representatives, or employees to enter the Property at all times for the purpose of 
inspecting the Property to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the terms 
of this lease and for the purpose of doing other lawful acts that may be necessary to 
protect the Lessor’s interest in the Property.  

 
10. Acceptance by Lessee.  The Lessee accepts the Property in its present condition. The 

Lessee agrees with, and represents to the Lessor, that the Property has been inspected 
by him and that he has been assured by means independent of the Lessor or any 
agent of the Lessor of the truth of all facts material to this lease and that the Property 
is being leased by the Lessee as a result of his inspection and investigation and not as 
a result of any representations made by the Lessor or any agent of the Lessor. 

 
11. Hold Harmless.  The Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold the Lessor and the Property 

free and harmless from any and all claims, liability, loss, damage, or expense resulting 
from the Lessee’s occupation and use of the Property, specifically including without 
limitations any claim, liability, loss, or damage arising: 

 
(a)  By reason of the injury to person or property, from whatever cause, 

while in or on the Property or in any way connected with the property 
or with the personal property in or on the Property including any liability 
for injury to the persons or personal property of the Lessee, his agents, 
officers, or employees: 

 
(b) By reason of any work performed on the Property or materials furnished 

to the Property at the instance or request of the  Lessee, his agents, or 
employee: 

 
(c)  By reason of the Lessee’s failure to perform any provision of this lease  
      Or to comply with any requirement imposed on him or on the  
      Property by any duly authorized governmental agency or political  

Subdivisions; Because of the Lessee’s failure or inability to pay as they 
become due any obligations incurred by him in the agricultural 
operations to be conducted by him on the Property. 

Page 14 of 510



 

3 
 

 
 

12. Subleasing and Assigning.   The Lessee shall not encumber, assign, sublet, or 
otherwise transfer this lease, any right or interest in this lease, or any right or interest 
in the Property, and any such transfer, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation 
of law or otherwise, is void and shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate this lease. 
Neither shall the Lessee allow any other persons, other than the Lessee’s agents, 
family and employees, to use the Property or any part thereof.  

 
13. Abandonment by Lessee.  Should the Lessee breach any provision of this lease or 

abandon the Property prior to the natural termination of the term of this lease, the 
Lessor may: 

 
(a) Continue this lease in effect by not terminating the Lessee’s right 

to possession of the Property, in which event the Lessor shall be 
entitled to enforce all his rights and remedies under this lease, including 
the right to recover the rent specified in this lease as it becomes due 
under this lease: or 

 
(b) Terminate this lease and recover from the Lessee: 

 
(1) All rents that would come due under this lease; 

 
(2) Any other amounts necessary to compensate the Lessor for all 

detriment proximately caused by the Lessee’s failure to perform 
his obligations under this lease. 

 
 
14. Default by Lessee.  All covenants and agreements contained in this lease are declared 

to be conditions to this lease and to the term hereby demised to the Lessee. Should 
the Lessee default in the performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement 
contained in this lease the Lessor may terminate this lease and re-enter and regain 
possession of the Property in the manner then provided by the laws of unlawful 
detainer of the State of Alaska then in effect. 

 
15. Insolvency of Lessee.  The insolvency of the Lessee as evidenced by a receiver being 

appointed to take possession of all substantially all of the property of the Lessee, the 
making of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors by the Lessee, or the 
adjudication of the Lessee as a bankrupt under the Federal Bankruptcy Act shall 
terminate this lease and entitle the Lessor to reenter and regain possession of the 
Property. 

 
16. Attorney’s Fees.  Should any litigation be commenced between the parties to this lease 

concerning the Property, this lease, or the rights and duties in relation thereto, the 
Lessor shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees pursuant to Alaska Rule of Civil 
Procedure 82. 

 

Page 15 of 510



4 

17. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or other
communications required or permitted by this lease or by law to be served on or given
to either party hereto by the other party hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed
duly served and given when personally delivered to the party to whom it is directed,
or, in lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, addressed to the Lessee or to the Lessor at their above specified
addresses. Either party, the Lessee or the Lessor, may change their address for the
purpose of this paragraph by giving written notice of such change to the party in the
manner provided in this paragraph.

18. Heirs and Successors.  This lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of
the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto, but
nothing in this paragraph contained shall be construed as a consent by the Lessor to
any assignment of this lease or any interest therein by the Lessee.

19. Miscellaneous.

(a) This instrument contains all of the agreements and conditions
made between the parties to this lease and may not be
modified orally or in any other manner than by an agreement in writing
signed by all parties to this lease or their respective successors in
interest, or assigns.

(b) Time is of the essence of each term and provision of this lease.

(c) The titles of the paragraphs of this lease shall not be considered to
be part of the lease for purposes of construction and interpretation.

(d) If any terms or provisions of this lease or the application thereof to
any person or circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or
Unenforceable, the remainder of this lease, or the application of
such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than
those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not
be affected thereby and each term and provision of this lease
shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted
by law.

20. Waiver.  The waiver of any breach or any of the provisions of this lease by the Lessor
shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach by the
Lessee either of the same or of another provision of this lease.

21. Cancellation/Reduction.  Any mortgage or statute notwithstanding, Lessor may cancel
this lease at any time between and including November 1 and March 31 by so notifying
Lessee and paying Lessee an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the rent paid by
Lessee for the previous year. Lessor may cancel the lease at any time between and
including April 1 and October 31 by so notifying Lessee and paying Lessee an amount
equal to (a) one-fourth (1/4) the previous year’s rent payment plus (b) one and 2/10

Page 16 of 510



5 

(1.2) times the price of the fertilizer spread (if any) on the Property for the then current 
growing season, minus (c) 75/100 (.75) times (b), if the first hay crop has been 
removed. Lessor may exercise these rights to cancel the lease or reduce acreage with 
or without cause. In addition to Lessor’s right to cancel, from time to time Lessor may 
reduce the acreage. The above formula shall be used on a prorate basis for such 
reductions in acreage. 

22. Lessee agrees to apply a minimum rate of 200 pounds of fertilizer per acre annually.
More than 200 pounds per acre will be at Lessee’s discretion. Verification of fertilizer
application shall be the responsibility of Lessee.

23. Lessee agrees that any time that he will be working equipment around runways or
taxiways he will first notify Palmer Flight Service Station operator, or the City of Palmer
Airport Manager in the event contact cannot be made with the Flight Service Station.

24. Lessee shall, each year this agreement is in effect, give notice in writing on or before
January 30th that he intends to operate and harvest the crop according to the
agreement. Failure to do so shall be termination of the agreement and the Lessor may
immediately seek a new tenant.

LESSOR: 

CITY OF PALMER 

DATE: ________________ BY: ______________________________________ 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager 

LESSEE: 

DATE: _________________ BY: ______________________________________ 
 Robert Shumaker 

Page 17 of 510



Page 18 of 510



P
age 19 of 510



Page 20 of 510



Page 1 of 2 AM 16-062

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 16-062 

Subject: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an Assumption of Proprietary 
Lease from the Estate of John H. Riggs to Gary A. and Odette M. Jamieson for Palmer Hangars 
Owners Association Unit No. 2 Lot 11 Block 3 at the Palmer Municipal Airport   

Agenda of: September 13, 2016 

Council Action: ___________________________________________________ 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent 

Date: August 18, 2016 Requested agenda date: September 13, 2016 

Department Information: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 

Community Development 

X Finance 8/23/16 

Public Safety 

Public Works 

Approved for presentation by: 

Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 

City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0 

This legislation (√): 
X Has no fiscal impact Creates a positive impact in the amount of: $ 

Negative impact in the amount of: $ 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted Affected line item(s): 

General fund assigned balance (after requested budget modification): $ 

Enterprise unrestricted net position (after requested budget modification): $ 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 21 of 510



Page 2 of 2 AM 16-062

Attachments: 
 Palmer Hangers Owners Association Proprietary Lease with John Riggs
 Purchase agreement
 Tenant contact information sheet
 Assignment and assumption of proprietary lease and transfer of certification of

Membership with Letters of Testamentary from Probate
 City of Palmer Consent to Assignment
 PHOA Approval
 Certificates of Insurance

Summary Statement: Palmer Hangars Owners Association is the lessee for the 9-unit T-
Hangar complex constructed on Yukon Drive at the Palmer Municipal Airport. Palmer Hangars 
Owners Association has a proprietary lease agreement with John Riggs for Unit 2. The personal 
Representative of John Riggs estate, his wife Cheryl Riggs is assigning this lease to Gary A. and 
Odette M. Jamieson.  

In accordance with and in keeping with article 3, Compliance with Airport Lease, of the Palmer 
Hangers Owners Association Proprietary Lease with John Riggs, the assignor acknowledges 
their understanding of and agrees to be bound by and to comply with all terms of Palmer 
Municipal Airport Lease Agreement No. 05-02 (The Airport Lease), as a lessee thereunder. The 
Assignor also acknowledges and agrees their rights under this Proprietary Lease are invalid and 
ineffective unless and until the City of Palmer executes a Consent to Lease Proprietary Lease as 
set forth in the Airport Lease, and the Assignor, in writing, agrees to be bound by the terms and 
conditions of the Airport Lease. 

The administration recommends  the Council Authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
an assumption of proprietary lease from the Estate of John H. Riggs to Gary A. and Odette M. 
Jamieson for Palmer Hangars Owners Association Unit No. 2, Lot 11 Block 3 at the Palmer 
Municipal Airport with the condition that the City receives one copy of the fully executed 
proprietary lease assumption. 

Administration Recommendation: Approve Action Memorandum No. 16-062 

Page 22 of 510



Ａ

Ｌ

2006‥ 029512-0
Recording Dist:311‐ Palrner

10ノ12/2006 9:47′ Mヽ Pages:l of 17

_7 ___… _.__―  ‐―一一――       ‐‐――一

―

一―――――コ

PALMER HANGARS OWNERS ASSOCIAT10N

PROPRIETARY LEASE

WITH JOEN R工 CCS

AS TO IJNIT NO。 2

0FT■E PALMER HANCARS C00PERAWE

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entcred into this 4.th day of October , 2006, by
and betwecn Palmer Hangars O'rpncrs Association (hcrcinaflcr thc 'Associalion"), [.cssor, rn
Alasks nonprofit corporation, of 1620 Raven Drivg Wasillq Aloska 99654; ard

!Z John El.ggs - .-.-, of 137 E- Arctlc,- PaIEer Ax( 99645 , (hcreinaltcr "Member"),
[,esscc.

WHEREAS, through Dcctarant, the Association obtained a leesc from the City of Palmcr
at the Palmer Airport (hcreinaftcr 'Airporl [.case') as to thc fotlowing dcscribed propcrty
(hcrcinallcr " I.cased hcmises") :

L,ot I l. Block 3, on the preliminary plat for thc Pelms Municipal Airport.

WHEREAS, Dcclarant constnrclcd an aircraft hurgar facilily (hcrcinaftcr "Palmcr
Hangars" on lhc l-cascd Prcmiscs; sd

WHEREAS, the Associalion was formed for the purlrose of opazting e leaschold
cooperalivc under the Alaska Common lnlcncsl Ouvnerrhip Act (AS 34.08) es to tbe Palrncr
Hangarc. with lhe intcnt thal Associalion Mcrnbers shall have the right to ocsupy and usc lhc
Pdmcr Hangan and its individual uniu undcr the tsrms and conditions hereinaf,€r sct forth; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is a Propriaary l,easc as dcfincd by AS 34.08.990(25), End
anached hercto as Exhibit A is a Cettificatc of Membership to which this Propriary l-easc
apperlains;

NOW THEREFORE. for valuable consideration paid to Dcclarant, Palmer Hangars,
LLC, receipt of which is hereby acknowlodged, and in coneideration of thc mutual promisas
contained herein, the Association hcrcby nrblcases to the Mcmber, and the Mcmbcr hcreby lakcs
Eom the Association, Unit No. 2

TO HAVE AND TO IiOLD said unit unto the Mernber, hie cxeutors, administrators and
authorizcd assigru, on lhe tcrms and conditions ect forth hcreirr, commanciag on the dae of this
Prcprietary Lcasc. end terminating on June 30, 2025, unless terminrted earlicr as providcd
hcrcin or cxtendcd as provided by the Airport Lcase.

ハ

i ⅢⅢⅢⅧⅢIⅢⅧⅢⅢⅢ‖Ⅲ‖‖Ⅷ‖‖

ル

Page 23 of 510



ARTICLE I
DEFINITtONS

Capitalizcd lcrms contained in this Pruprictary Leasc stratl have $e same dcfinitions and
meanings set forth in the Delaration.

ARTICLE 2
MEMqER'S RtcItTS

In return for the MernHs continued fulfillment of the tcrms and conditiorrs of thisProprictary l-ease, the Associalion oovcoanls that thc Mernbcr m8y, at a1 tines whilc fhisProprietary Lease rcrnains in effed, have and enjoy for tr,. uii*s sole u$ ard bcnefit theunit above dcscribc4 and, may cnjoy in *-mon r*ith all othcr Mcnrbcrs of tbc Association the
use of all common couunrinily propcrty and facilities.

Thc Mcrrber actnowrcdges his undcrstanding of and agrccs to be bound by and to
comply with slltsnrs of thc Airporr l.casc as if a tessi therEurrd; Thc-Mcorbcr acknowlcdgcshis rights undcr this Propriaary Leasc rc subjca to rtrc iiffi Lclsc. The Menrbcr alsoacknowledgcs.md his rights under this Propietary ri* o. invalid and incffccrive
unless rnd rmtil lhc city of Palmcr cxccutcs a bonssrt to ir.-pia"ry Leasc as sct forth in thcAiryrcrt Lcase, aod thc Mqnber, in nrriling agrrcs to bc bound by tb" tcrms and coodirions of thcAitpon L-sc.

ARTECLE 4

The Mcmbct sgracs to Pr6crve and pr_ornote the cooperetive owucrchip principlc* onwhich lhc A*rccialion has been foundcd. Thc Mcrnbcr ac*nowtcagc his rmderitandir[-of and
ryrses to bc bomd by ry to comply with alt of the terms of rh" p""trration, a-#chc oflncorporation' Bybws, rulcr and regutations of thc Associatioq md any anrcndmcnts endaddilions thcrao.

ARTICLE 5

The Mcnrbcr shall ulilizc the unit for himself End/or his gtrcsu and invilecs, subjea to thcfollowing reslriaims:

The unis may be used_for any purposc authorized or sllowed under thc Airpoa lrasc.The uni"s sholl not be uscd for ury unlowful prtrpose or for any purpose or use that may
PROPRIE:ARY l』 nSE
PAl_MER HANGARS OWNERSへ SSOC:AT:ON
P● Pe 2 of9

匈 卿珊匿 |

2006{29512-0

Page 24 of 510



constitute a nuisanoc or h8zard to heallh. safeiy- or propcily. Thc units shall not be uscd or
occrrpicd for any purp$c in violation of any law, lawful order, or rule or regulation conccrning
thc opcration or rsc of Palmer Airport. No unit rnay be used for any rcsidcntial occuparcy.

Thc Mcrnbcr shall not permit or suffer any(hing to be done or kcpt upon the qorunon

iolcf,Gst community which will incrcase lhe rale of insurance on tbc building or on lhe gontcnts

lhrro( or which will obstrua or intafere s,ith tnc rights of olhcr occiryants, or annoy thcrn by
unreasonablc noises or othcnrise, nor will hc commit or pcrnrit any nuisancc on the common
intcrcst conununity, or commil or suffcr any illegal act to be committcd thcron. lf by reason of
thc usc of the premises by thc Mcrnbcr lhe ratc of insurance on the building shdl be incrcascd,
thc Mernbcrshall beomc petrcnrlly liable for thc additional iruurancc premiums.

ARTICLE 6
ALTERJTTIONS AND AITDITIONS

Thc Menrbsr Bgrocs to comply with thc architcctursl stendards scl out in thc Detaration.
Thc*Mcnrbcr rhell mt, without thc prior writtcrr onscnl of thc Associetion, matc any sEuctunl
attcrations on tlre prenriscs or in the, w8lcr, tas or pipes, clcctrical conduils, plumbing or olhcr
firtures corlDcctcd Ocrcwith, or removs any edditiors, improvernerrB or fixturcs fiom the unit

tf thc Mcnrbcr for any rcelon abandons thc rrnil, hc shall sunrodcr to thc Association
posscssion lbcroof, including any dtcrations, additionq ft(turc and improveorcnts.

ART]CLE 7

TRAITSFER OF INTER.EST

Thc Mcsnbcr may ransfcr his rights and membcrship, bul only as alloncd hcrcin and

rmder the Dcclantion. Trangfcr of a Mcrnbe/s right under this Proprisllry Lcasc rcquircs prir
writtcn conscnt by lhc Association, which conscnt will rcquire compliurcc with all terms of thig
Propriary Lcasc. pa),mcnt of all amounts owed to rhe Associatior\ and erecution by thc
transfcree of a ftopriaary Leasc. Transfer of the Mernber's righu is elso subjcct to wrincn
conscnt by Orc City of Palmcr, which conscnl will require cxocution of ccrtain docuncnts,
including a Corucrrl to Proprietary Leasc (Exhibit E to Declsration) urd Tcrnrinaion of
hopriary lrase(Exhibit G to Declantion).

ARTICLE t
MANAGEMENT.JAXES AND TNSURANCE

Thc Association shall provide nec*ssry rnsnstcmcnt, operation and rdnrinistration of
lhe ommon intcrest community pay or provide for thc psyment of all tarcs or ssscssrrcnts
lwiod against any oonrmon arcas of the common intcrcst community, prccurc and pay or providc
for thc paymcrrl of fne insurancc and exlcndcd coyerage, and othcr insurrnce u roguired by any
morttsBe on propcty in the oorrnon inlrrcst community, and such othcr iruurancc as the
椰 atiOn may d― αivisabic on the proメ 瀬y

PROPNETARY IEASE
PALMER HハNCARS OWNERS ASSOCIAT:ON
Page 3 of9

in the cronurrcn interest community. The

ⅢⅢ』剰
200oOo29612o0

―

  、

Page 25 of 510



Association will nol, howqv€tr, provide insurance on tlrc Merrrbe/s inlcrest in the rurit or on lhe
Mernber's pcrsonal propcrly.

ARTICLE 9
uTrLrTtEp ANp TAXES

The Associrtion chall provide acccss to crectricity for thc uni! and may p,rovidc water,
seweri trash rcrnovd and o0rcr utilitics if it decms thcm reuonrbic aod 

"ppLpri.t.. 
Thc

Mernbcr shall pry directly for clectricity urd all othcr utiliries not providcd by thc Association,ad all peronal urd propcrty tercs asscssed on thc unil

ARTICLE IO
COIUMON EXPENSES

The Msnber s!r? to pay to the Association lhc Mernbet's propoaionole shere of Oc
common Gr,PCrleGs' rs defincd in the Declaration and daernrincd by thc Board ofDirec-ron. Thc
oormxrn Gfpcnscs shdl includc, but not be limitcd to, the followio! ircrns:

(a) The oosts of all managemcnl, opcration and administration of thc cornrrron interet
commuity alrd rehted serviocs fumishc4 including paymcnts on thc.Airport
Lcase;

(b) Thc coct ofany nccesary rcpain and restoration io the Arsociation's propcfly;

(c) The mmunt of all taxes and asscssmcns tevied against the common intercat
oommutity, including the building which thc Association is obtigucd ro pEy;

(d) Thc cost of Iire srd crtcndod covcragc insurancc or tbe o1ynmon intcr63r
cornrnunily and sltch olbcr insrrance as lhc Associrtion may effect or as may be
rcquirod by any mortgage on thc common intcrcst commuritli

(c) Thc corl of obtaining or furnishing any utititis as senriccs rclatcd to tbc common
acas;

(f, All rcscn'es s€t uP by 0rc Board of Dirccton peilaining to the common intqcsl
@mrnunity

(g) Thc cstimatcd cost of future repairs, msintsnancc and rcplaccmcnG, or cEpitsl
IrnProvemcnt Ass6smcnts of the oornmoD interegt currmunity property ro be
made by thc Association;

(h) Any other crpc?lcs of the Associalion approved by rhc Board of Directors,
including opcrating dcficiarcies, if any, for i;o, pcriods; urd

PROPRJETARY LEASE
P^JJER IIA}.IGARS OWNERS ASSOCIATION
Page 4 of9

¬爾ⅧⅢ柵‖‖
4 of 17

2006‐029512o0

ヽヽ

、
‐
　
　
‐
　
　
，

Page 26 of 510



(i) All other common experses sd out in the Declaration.

Thc Board of Drccton shall detsmrine the amounl of thc oommon crpcnscs annuatly,
but may do so al more frqucnt intervals should circumstanccs so roquirc. No Mernbcr rhall be
charged with uore than his pioportionrte share thcreof as dac,nnincd by 0rc Bord of Directors,
The Bord of Directon shall dctcrmine the timing of paymerrt of the comrnon cxpcos6.

ARTICLE I t
SPECTAL ASSESSDIET\TTg

The Manbcr agrces to p8y all Special Asscssmcnts and such other rmounts, as scl fortb
in the Declaration.

ARTICLE 12
LAT" CnARGEE-N{p OTHER COSTS tN CASE OF ITEFAUI,7

The Mcmbcr sErG6 tha( in addition to the othcr sums that havc bryne or will becomc
due, prrsuent to thc tarDs of lhis Agrccrncol, the Mcnrber shall pay to thc Association a lste
charge in an mount to be dacrrrincd from time to time by thc Board of Directon for eactr

Poymcnt of Corrnon or Special Asessmants, or prt thereo(, more lhm tcn (10) dryr in Brrcarl.

If r Mernber dcfauhs in maliog a paymenl of Common or Speiel Asscssu Gttts, or in thc
prformancc orobscnancc of any provision of this Agrcczncn! ud the Association has obtained
the scrvicca of any a0orncy wiOr rcspcct o the defaults involved, the Mcrnbcr covcoan6 ard
sgrEcs to pay to the Association any cosB or fees involvod, inclrrding rcrsonable attome/s fees,
notwithstanding thc fag that e srit has not yrl becn inslitutcd. ln case a ruit is institrrted, thc
Mcmbcr shall also pay the cogs of the snrit in addition to other aforesaid costr and fccs,

ARTICLE 13
INDEMNITY AND IIOLD HARJITLESS

To the full extott pcrmined by law, the Membcr agnaes to indenurify and hold harmless
thc Associatioq caclr end cvery othcr Membcr of ihe Association, tho Declarant, and thc City of
Palmer from and agrimt ury and ell lmscs, claims damages, liabilitics md obligdiors, of any
kind or nalure, including reasonatrle sltom€D/s fecs and cosls, arising out of or rclaing in any
way lo the use or ocsupansy of thc Mcrnbct's unit or thc Palmcr Hangrrs crommoB areas, lirnited
common Brcar or facilities.

AR,TICLE 14
suBo RITINA Tt ON 

-Cr{A US E

The common inlercst community, of which thc mil is a part, is locatcd on real property
owncd by thc City of Palmcr and lcasod to thc Association. The parties hercto agrce thai rhis
Agreernenl and all rigbtc privileges and bcnefits hereunder are and shall be at all timcs subjeo to

PROPREETARY L=ASE
PALMERllANGARS OWNERS ASSOCIA■ ON
Page 5 o『 9

7而爾爾爾「
~

5o「 17

2000o02961200

Page 27 of 510



and arbordinale to thc leasehold rights of the City of Palmer, and atso to 8oy mortgtge or deod of
trust which may 8l tny-tinc hcreafter be placcd on the proprty of lhe Associati-oi or any parr
thercof- The Mernbcr hercby agrEes lo execute, at thc Associition's rcqucst urd cxpetrs6, ury
insbumcnt which thc Associatioo or lhe Ciry of Palmcr or sny leader may decrn n6e6ssry or
desirable to efrcct thc subordination of this Agrccrnenf and thc Membcr hccby rppoints the
Association and each urd ctcry oflicer lhercof, and any futurc officer. his irrwocabic attorncy.
ln-fagt durige the lernr hacof lo erccutc any such instrumcnt on behatf of rbc Menrbcr. Tbe
Mernbcr does hereby caprcssly waivc any and ajl noticcr of dcfault and notiq of termination of
the Airport L.case or forcclo$rc of any morrgage or deed of tnsr on hc Association,s lcosehold
which may be roguired by law.

ln thc evsrl a waivcr of such noticcs is not lcgally valid, the Mcnrber does hcrcby
constitule lhc Associttion his agcnt to reccive and acccpt such noticcs on thc McrDbcds Hulf.

ARTICLE 15
DEFAT'LT BY I}IEMBER

Any of thc following wcnts shall constitutc a dcfsutt by the Mcnrbec

(a) The Mcrnbcr aesscs to be the owner and legrl hol&r of a mcmbcrship in
lhe Association;

The Membcr Eflcmpts to transfcr or assign his intercst in a manrrcr
inonsistcDr with lhc provisioru of the Declaration or Airport l-cesc;

Anytime during the tcrm of this AgrcernE t thc Mfiibcr ir declared
banlsuet undcr thc laws of thc Uaited statcs, cxcEpt wilb thc corrscnl of
the Borrd of Dircbrs;

Anytime during the tcrnr of this Agreernert a rccciver of the Memtrcr's
propcrty is appointcd undcr any of the laws of thc Unitcd states or of any
statc, crccpt wi& the aonscnt of thc Board of Direuon;

Thc Mcrnbcr malccs a gencral assigruncnt for the bcnefit of croditors;

Tbc Mcrnbcr's inlcrest in the coorpcrativc is levied upon and sotd undcr rhc
proaqN ofany court;

Ttrc Mcrnbcr fails ro pay eny sum owed to the Associaricr uodcr this
Proprictary l,casc,'the Declaralion or otherwisc; or

Thc Menrhcr fails to abidc by lhc tcrms of tbis proprietary Lcasc, thc
Airporr l.rasc, rhe Declaration. or the Assosialion's Articlcs, Bylaws, or
nrles and regulations in effect al the rime.

PROPRIETARV LttE
PALMER HANCARS OWNERS ASS00A■ ON
P38● 6o「 9

0)

(0

(d)

ｃ，

　

０

(8)

0)

ⅢⅢ』‖岬皿‖
2000。o29612o0

ヽ
，

Page 28 of 510



Upon defaull thc Associslion may al its oprion give to the Mcrnbcr 8 notioe that this
Proprietary Lcase will oxpire 8t a date not tcss than ten ([O) Oays thcreaftcr. lf thc Association
so proceeds, all of thc lv.lanbcr's rights under this Proprietoy Uc.sr wilt erpire on thc date so
lired- in such nolicq unless in tbe meantime thc defautt has boen crred in e muucr desnod
satisfaaory by thc Association. lt it the intqrtion of the panics hcreto to oeate hcrcby
conditional limituions, 8nd il shall thcrerpon be lawful for thi Association to rcGntc, rhc unit
and to evid all pcrsory md pcrsonal property thcrcfrom in the eame manncr as providod by law
irt case of an unlawful holdovcr by a commercial tenant- Furlber, in the cvcot bf a dsfsult, thc
Association shall be cntillod lo all olher rcoedics set forth in rhe Dcctaration or available under
law.

Thc failure on the parl of thc Association to avail itsclf of any of the rernodicc givar
urdcr lhis Agrocrrrnt'or al lau' shall not waive or destroy thc righr ofthe Associetiolr to avail
itself of suctr renredies for similar or other breachcs on the part orihc ucnrucr.

ARTICLE T5
NOTICFS

Whenwer the provisions of taw. thc Docleration or this Propriaary l-case rcquire notice
to bc given to the otbcr puty hcrcto, any notice by the Associ*ion to-thc Metnbcr shall bc
dcerned to have bccn duly givan, aod ury dernand Uy tltc Association upon rhe Mcnrbcr shail bc
decmcd to havc bccn duly made, if the samc is dclivcred to thc Menr'bcr al the Mcrnbct's tast
known addrcss; -d -I notice or demand by ttrc Mcrnbcr to thc Alsociation slrall be dccrnod ro
have bcsn duly givan if dclivercd lo tfie oflice of thc Association. Notice rnay also Uc E""n uV
dcpositing samc in the Unitcd Statcs mait, and the timc of maiting shalt bc dccmd to bcThc timc
of SiviDg of sudr noticc

ARTICLE I7
REPnEqEIiITATIONS

No reprcsentations othcr thar those cxpressly contained in this Agrccmcnr" the
Dectaratioq thc Articles of lncorporation and the-Bylaws of thc Association sh;1 be binding
upon thc Associalion.

ARTTCLE Tt
RJEIflEI'IES

Thc excrcisc ol *y of thc rights or remcdics as herein providod wirh respccr to any
default shall not prcclude or aflect lhe nrbrequent excrsise of such rights or r€roedie'ar diJhrcnr
times for differcnt defaults.

The re$pcctive rights ot rernedics. whcthet provided by this Agrccmant or by law or
available in equity, shalt bc srrrnulative, and the cxcrcise of any on. or-rnnro of such rigbts or
PROPRIETARY LEASE
PALMER HANGAR5 0WN“ ASSOCIA■ ON
Page 7● f9

靱 鶉鰈 〕
7 of 17

2006‐029512‐ 0

Page 29 of 510



remdks sha:i not predudc or arFa the exercisc,at thc ttune or at direrent tines.Of any Other

righis Or remedies fOr thc sEIne Or difFerent deraules,。
r fOr the田コ c Or difFermt簡 lutt Of艤Mmttrto pgfOm orob_c any pro宙 siOn ofthis A『畷mcnt,

ARTICLE 19
GENDER REFERENCE

苫L糊l繹掘叩 11」篭比『撚 ■電

ARTICLE 20
GOVERNINC LAW

This Propriaary l,casc shalt bc govcrncd by Alaska law.

IN wlTNEss WHEREOF, lhc parlies harrc cswed this Agrecnrcnt to be sigDod the dayond ycar first abovc crrillat.

Any=f_e10 the wOrd
¬デ"in th`cvent ttc MmbeFた
∞ up:Q

Datq L0l04/06

Date: 10′OJ/06

PALMER HANGARS oWNERS
ASSOCIATloN

Dlrector

Br

Dlrector

〃σ′

“

′o

町

Ｌ

THlRD JUttα AL】 STRI釘 ;3・

undmittiF熙野Fl[y脚肝轟七」な

℃tttE∫島鷺与Director,respect市 e■y
PROPRBARY LEASE

:謬 鮮 ♂
ぶ GARS OWNERS ASS∝:A■ON

11
・・ ,,

剖囮 M )
O of 17

2006o029612o0

‐

Page 30 of 510



GIVEN UNDER lvf\f HAND and oflicial scal the day and year last wrinco above.

・
Notary Public in ttd fOr

My∞ mmLsion exPBttl

STATE OF ALASKA      )
)SS。

‐ rRD JUDiCLAL DISTRICr)

THIS IS TO CERTrFY that onthe 5th day of OCtOber 2006, bcfore mc thc
tm&rsignd a Notary Public in and for thc Sutc of Alaska, duly commissionsd end swora.
pcrsonally appcarod John Rl-g;ts , lo me known l,o be thc 1rclson named hercin
and who txccutcd the foreping PROPRIETARY LEASE, and acknowledgcd that hc rigncd the
samG as his frcc urd rroluntry act and deo4 for thc uscs and purposcs lhcrcin meotioncd.

CIVEN UNDER MY HAND and officid seal tho day aod ycar last writtao abovc.

PROPRIE「 ARV LEASE
PALMER HANGARS OWNERS ASSαコA■ON
PaBc 9 or9

r蝠
1爾‖酬‖
9 of 17

2006o029612o0

My wmmissio,n orpircs:

Page 31 of 510



" 
/"lJ a&went 

t'

CONSENT TO PROPRIETARY LEASE

The atlachcd Protrietsry l,casc from Palmer Hangars Ownerr Association (hcreinaflcr

'Proprictary Lcssor") to Jqh+ RleEs (hercinaftcr 'Propriaary [ascc') is hereby

accepted and approved. subjcct to the terms and conditions of lhc original Airport l.ease datad

Junc 5, 2005. by and bctwcen lhe City of Palmcr. Lcssor, and Pdmcr Hurgars, LLC, Lcsscc, urd

subscquent amcndmens tbcrtto and assignmcnts thcreof. Said Airport l.case covcrr r parccl of

land locatcd within lhe City of Palma, which is dcscribed as follows:

Iot I l, Bloct 3, on the prcliminary plat for the Pabner Municipal Airport
(hereinafter referrcd to es 'Leased Pranises').

This Conscnt to Proprietery Lesse pcrtains lo Unit of thc foregoing Lcased

Prcoises.

This conscnl is givcn by thc City of Palmcr without waiving ury right of action or

relcasing Propriary Lcssor or any subsogucnt Propriaary tJslG{s) from any liability or

responsibility tmdcr thc aforcrnentionod Lrasc, obscqucrrt amen&ncnts thereto, and assignmanu

thereof.

In considcration of the conscnt of the City of Palmcr to 0ris Propriaary I-casc, the

Proprietary Lcssor unconditionally guarantee pcrformancc by thc Pmpriaary LcsscG of Ell

lcrms and conditions of thc aforernentionod kase, cubscqucnt anrerrdmcnts thcrao end

assignments thercof.

Ncithcr this Propriaary l-casc nor thc acccptance of rcrrt by the City of Palmcr from

Propridary l*ssce shall relcasg reliwe or in any manncr modify thc obligatiors of Pmpriaary

Lessor undcr the tcmrs rnd conditions of lhc Lcose. subsequent amen&ncnts thcrclo ard

ossignmenls therof.

ⅢⅢⅧ‖‖‖Ⅷ‖
200Go02961230

ヽ
‐　‐
‐　‐

Page 32 of 510



In considmtiOn Of lhe cOnsml lo he City of Palmo 10 this PropJdtty Lcase,the

PFOpridl町 し

"s∝
hatty agHxs that i● 五8h｀ are sdJtt Ю 」1■

=htS,dutks and liabiliti“
Of

Propriettt Lsor pЩ suanHO thc t_and cOndmions or the aFormmtiOned Airpon Lcase,

Subsqucnt mmdmmtsthgaO and assig口 nents th● 00ti

ln consideradOn of ttc∞ nsmt Orthc ciけ 。fPユlmer,thc PrOpnetary應 ∝ aFees to be

bound by a‖ valid clains and valid derens“ which may now exist or may h呻 ncr deveioP

踊 ∝n the City oFPalm"and thc P●
PriCttV hSOr.

in COrLSide口饉on of the consmt OF the City of Pahng tO ttis PropttG由
ヮ Lttc,the

Proprietary Lsor nd Pコ 叩j●1町 L― shall each"mに and ktt in fO“ dttn8 het― 。F

this agEment adquatc in― ce sattsradory tO the City ofPalm"with an instra 8pprOVd by

the city of Pahn● 10p70t∝ l the City Of PJmげ ,the Declttmt,thc PropricLtty h80r and

Propridary L‐ s∝ against∞mprehttve puЫ ic iiability Fof bOdily ittw and prOpeゥ 山田age.

The alnount oFin馴田uncc=ηu油J Ofthc P,opH"L30ris sct fOn in the AirpOlt Laseo TЪ E

mounl。「 insumccttquid ofttc PrO"c鮨
り L― is as fO::Ows:

ao  i「 働c unit is 801ng tO be usod fOr the non_∞ mmげd」 stomge of」 rcrat JL

PrOpFi山町 Lsce mud Obtain insuran∝ 山atヽ d_Od ad岬口e by thc P」mげ

C:ty ODlmCi:hn dme 10 time,which PBmtty nttui暉
∞mmacia1 3-l

liabi:ity insunnce,with atrpod P_is∝ insuraIBce vath a S300,OoO single

o― ence liability limit:

b.  if thc unit is 30ing 10 be usod fOr a small busin_Operado、
山c Propridコγ

麟 mu“ Obtain insuran∝ that is d_Od adqua"bythC Pdmげ city COuncil

hm ttme tO dmc, which pttЮ
`罰

lly Ч uiロロ 
…

ercia1 8-al liability

CONSENT TO PROPRJETARV LEASE                           ,   ・   :
P●8e2of 6

1l of 17

2006‐02961200       
・

゛

Page 33 of 510



insurancc, wilh airport premiscs insurance covera$e with a 350O,0@ sinBlc

ooqtr"enoe liability lin it.

Thc Pmpriaary Lcssor aod Proprietary Lessec shall cach provide thc City of Palmer with proof

ol insuence covqagc in lhe form of a certifisalc of insurancc prior to erecution of this Corccnt

trr Proprietary l-ease by the City of Palmer. All insurancc rcguired by this coveorrt sball:

narnc the City of Palmcr alr ur additiqral insurod;

provide tbat the City of Palrncr be notified at least thirty (30) days prior to my

lcnrrination, canccllation or m8tcrid changc in thc insuranoc ooverage;

inclrde s waivcr of rubrogation by whictr the inswer wai.vcs all rights of

subrogation tgaulst the City of Pdmcr for payments madc undcr thc policy;

be ubmined on lhc City of Palmer Insrrancc Fonn, attached hcrcto as E:rhibir

'A.'vith copics of 0rc Dcchration and Endorscrnent pagc* attadrod thcrclo; and

not contain a dunage dodustiblc for cach and evcry los that crccods ooc

Tbousand Dollars (3 1,000).

Nolhing in this conscnl is to bc aonstrucd ss 8 rc,prcsentariorr, ratificarion or approval by

thc Ciqv of Palmcr. cithcr apress or implicd, rs to tbc validity of any of thc tenns, conditions or

provisions of ury agpcmco! sublEssc andor assigrmrent doctrmcrrl bawccrr Propriaary Lcssor

and Propriaary Lcsscc.

Nothing in this conscnl is lo bc conslnred Es a conscmt by the Ciry of Palmer lo ury

subscguenl traosaction. Any fintlrcr mortgagc, plcdgc, hpothccation, cnanmbnncc, ltrn3fcr,

subleasc or assignmcnt (hcreinafto in this clarrse rcferrcd to collestively as 'encumbrancc') of

L,esscc's or SublcsseCs inlerests in thc Lcased Prcmiscs, or any parr'. or portion lhcrcol, shalt first

CONSENT TO PROPRTETARY LEASE
Prgc 3 of 6

ａ

　

　

１
０

lllllllll‖‖|||1爾
20ooOo2951200

d.

Page 34 of 510



bc approved in witing by lssor. ln lhe evcnt thcrc is an cxisting propricrary Lease or olhcr

cncumbrance whiclr has not beca approved in wriring by l-cssor, sudr proprictary Lcase or othcr

encumbrancc must be disctoscd and consenteJ to in writing by Lessor prior to this Conscnt to

Proprietry Lcase becoming effecive, Faiturc lo obtain l-cssocs requircd written approval of a

prior or subscqucot encurnbrancc will rendcr such eneumbrance voidabte an( at Lessor,s

eleclion' shall constitute a defautt. occupancy of thc Lrased prcnriscs or any part or unit rhcrcof

by r prospeclivc lrarufcree, subtcssoe or assigrrc bcforc opproval of the hursfa, sublcasc or

assignment by Lr*ror shall constitute a breach of rhe Lcasc.

lf lhc Ptuprictary Lcsse hcrctndcr is a corporatio4 uninorporarcd associatiorl

partnership or joinl vctltutE, thc cncumbrmcc, tmrsfcr or sale of any stock or intscst in said

corporatioq associatioq parlncrship or joint verturc, in the rggrcglte cxceoding twcory-fivc

Petccnt (25o/o) sbdl bc deerncd an assigrrmcot wi0rin lhe mcaning of rhc l-asc.

By signahrc below, thc Proprictary Lcssor and Propriclary L,csse acoc?t the tcrms and

oonditions herco( tbe Propriaary Lcssee aclnowledges the lcrms and onditions of thc

rforcotcntioncd IJtsG' subsoqucnl ameadmenls lhcre{o and assigrrments thereof urd thc Lcssor

conscnts to thc PropriAary Lcasc.

PROPRIETARY LESSOR: PROPRIE「ARY LESSEE:

Bメ

】●:

&
Date:

mtor
ro/-04/05 Datel 10ノ Oζ706

CONSENT TO PROPRIETARYユ 』AsE
P38e4o『 6

‖‖||‖ ||‖‖|||lllllll‖
13 of 17

2006■29612o0

PALMER HANGADS OWNERS

″ ヽ

Page 35 of 510



CITY OF PALMER

STATE OF ALASKA

THlRD JUDlClAL DIS■ RI∝

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on the 4th dcy of October 20r6,berOre me the

pers酬け Bpp―d          b mekn¨
"bc thc SeCy―

Tr響彙もfPJmビ
Hang田5 0vngs Assodation.the corpontion narnd move,and knowntO mcto bc the Fon
narned h"dn田」 who cスcttded the Fore80ing CONSENT TO PROPRIETARY LEASE for and
on lx』 u」fof鯛Jd oO「paion by authority duly vttd in him)and acknowidBod ttat he signed

t=P5盤 li漑ど 1卿 品 鶴 』胃 控
r臨

騎 岬 出 虫 壽 J撃 。

GⅣEN IJNDER MY HAND and ottcialscalthe day and ycar hЫ  above wtttten.

My commission cxpircs:

STATE OF ALASKA     )
)SS。

Ⅲ RDJUD:CIAL DlS■ tlCr)

TIIIS lS TO CERTTFY that on the ath day of october . 2006, bcforc me the
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for lhe Statc of Atasta. duty commisrionod and sworu,
personally appcred Jobn 31g;gs (Propriaary Lcssee), known to me to bc he
identical individual namcd hcrsin and who crccuted rhe foregoing CONSENT TO
PROPRIETARY LEASE, frecly urd vblrmtarity, for the uscs and purposes thcrein mentionod.

CONSENT To PROPRIETARY LEASE
Page S Or6

)

)S.

)

硼 而鰤 ¬
14 of 17

2006o029612・ 0

NotaFy Public in 3nd f07 Alaska

By:

Page 36 of 510



CIVEN UNDER MY HAND and oflicial seal the day and par last abovc urritten.

STATE OF ALASKA      )
)SS.

■ lIRD JUDlCIAL DISTRICr)

THIS IS TO CERTIFY [rat on the I I . day of Gdlld!:__,2006, beforc me rhe
undcrsigrrcd. a Notary Public in and for lhe Statc of Alask-fduly connnissioned and sworn.
perronally appeared JANE DAl,l!, lo me known and known to mc to bc ttrc idcnticsl individual
descriH in and who execulcd thc wilhin and forcgoing CONSENT TO PROPRIETARY
LEASE as Airport Muragcr of the City of Pelmcr, frecly and voluntarily on behelf of the City of
Patmcr, for lhc uscs and purposcs therein mcntioned.

GIVEN UNDER lvry HAND and official scal the day and year last abovc rvritten.

omm飢
DAWN U。

―酬

C―

CONSENT TO PROPRIETARY LEASE
P33● 6 or6

´
　
‘ 冊Ⅲ‖Ⅷ脚‖ⅧⅧ

2006o029612o0

,v.u,LrtrL U. w -, a.v]rztv

Notary Public in utd for Alash
My commission cxpires: e/r%o l/O

My commission cxpires:

Page 37 of 510



負 ョ

::
li
l

ヨ 属

属
Ｆ ● コ ■

一 １ ９

コ ヨ

口 島 〓 ａ

口 Ｅ Ｆ

ｏ ヒ メ く Ｊ

望 　 １

● ● Ｃ ２ ０ ｏ

，
こ 口 Ｆ

… ヨ

● ３ ●

，
■ 〓 昴

ヨ ” か ０ ↓ ●

圏 圃 国

日 日 惇

― 属

● ｍ ● ヨ ● こ Ｅ ２ 輌

一 ヽ ● ゛ ｎ Ｏ ● ２ ● ８ Ｅ ２ 日

一 ヽ 一 〇 ０ “ ０ き ０ こ Ｅ ２ 日

ｎ ■ Ｈ ５ 島

口 当 日 ● ３ ● ２ ヨ ー ヨ Ｅ 二 ¨

２ 月 ヨ ヨ 只 Ｍ 雲 ご こ こ ミ

ｎ
，

Ｏ ｍ Ｅ 国 ２ ”

‘ ン ０ シ ヨ ｍ ● コ
，

９ 〓 ロ １ ０ 「 ― ●
，

く

，
こ Ｒ Ｂ ３ ０ 曽 ヨ ■ ■ １ コ ス ● Ｏ ｔ 晏 こ

含 じ ６ ５ ヽ 口 ● ３ １ Ｆ 月 ５ ８ 日 ３ ● ヨ ● ● 〓 薔 〕

一 ” ヨ ） 　 ● ｒ ヽ “ 一菫 Ｔ ■ ヨ ） 一 Ｅ Ｃ ａ 〓 ヽ ョ ロ 〓 一

● ● 　 ９ ■ ョ ロ 〓 〓 ■ り ヽ Ａ ”
，

” 一 ヨ ■ ８ 宙 ミ ｇ ヽ こ ） こ

う ● ） 」 彙 」
，

ｐ ´ ■ ０ ● ■ ■ ― ロ ン く Ｅ モ ニ ８ ■ ‘ ● コ ｐ
，

ヽ ヨ 員 ）

ｏ
，

） ョ 〓 彙 ” Ｆ ヨ と ヽ 属 ｒ Ｆ ″

會 ） ５ ■ 属 あ ヨ じ 〓 И 〓 属 “ ● ３ ‘ ８ ８ ８ ８ 古 ニ

０ 　 ８ Ｅ ａ
，

ヨ ロ ヒ 属 “

器 ‥ Ｈ Ｂ

，

コ

，
〓 コ こ 『 ′ ＾ ‘ ヽ い 　 う 「 コ ヨ 「 ビ Ｐ Ｒ ヨ ”

Ｌ 彰 ξ

● ヨ ー ● ― ―

ョ ご 質 冒 一 ン 言 メ 主 ￥ Ｒ 稲

ヨ α Ｆ 「 ”ト
ー

i

一 Ｏ Ｃ 〓 ● い こ ■

，

Ｆ ｉ

‥ １ ・

１ ‥

げ
，
「

′ 
′′́
「
‐~

ヽ

l1
3

ヽヽ
  
  
|

｀ヽ
、
■
_

′

′

′

′ ′ ‐

」

ｔ ヽ

ヽ

ヽ

、 ．

ｇ 弘

日 日 Ｆ Ь

′
′

:轟
ヽ

―
‐

 
―

="
_″

・

“
■ よ

う
,,
'。
 
“

|_
__
__
__
__
―

―
二

|・
::
::
:

|:
:ま

|:
::
|~
~~
1:
~
~~
|

ヽ
f‖

Ⅲ
Ⅲ ‖
‖Ⅲ
Ⅲ
‖ ‖

16
o,
 1
7

20
00
o0
29
51
2o
0

―
―

・ 」

　 　 　 一 　 　 　 　

＝

　 　 　 　 　 　 　 　 　 　 一 　 　 　 　 　

ヨ Ｓ Ｏ 「 ｏ

P
ag

e 
38

 o
f 5

10



リ
ロ

〓

Ｌ

ｂ

α
ｕ
Ｃ
２
●

颯 :in     "

4            1:

― ―
― ―

―

― ―

― 一
― ―

― ―
―

″働師

″
８

一
ヽ

01
|

『
刀
＞
０
↓

＞

//~劇
耐 い

―

＝

鴛

慇

慮

Ｆ

口

澪

翻

勤

　（
到

f‖ⅢⅢⅧⅢ‖ⅧⅢ
17 of 17

2006o029612・ 0

03mO日nSm

S⊇
ゝ _

鳳
囲

０

１

１

１

１

‥

―

―

‥

！

印
熟

勁

可
「

詢

「

劇
「

８‐

Ｊ

朝

‐

‐

‐

「

―

‥

―

―

‥

―

―

―

―

―

―

―

―

―

―

―
―

１

１

‥

―

―

―

劃与子トーーー

Page 39 of 510



Page 40 of 510



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

1. $!9. The Seller(s) agrees to sellto Buyer(s) and Buyer(s) agrees to purchase, at
the price and on the terms and conditions set forth below, the following described property in the
Palmer Recording District, Thard Judicia! District, State of Alaska:

Legal Description: Palmer Hangar Owner's Association Unit 2

Palmer Recording District 2006-0009201 -0

StreetAddress: 750 E. Yukon Street Palmer, AK 99645

hereinafter'the Property". The sales price includes the following personal property (if none,
leave blank):_Refiigerator, V\hsher and Dryer, Stove and Microwave, (2) Televisions, garage
items any and all household fumishes left on the property.

2. Price. The total purchase price for the Property is: _$ 82,000.00_, payable by the
Buyer(s) as follows:

(a) The balance of the purchase price will be at time of closing.

3. Condition of Propertv. Buyer(s) ofiers to purchase the property in its present "As-!s'
condition: Hangar has been cleaned and no items were left.

4. Other BuyerGsntingeneles Other contingencies of Buyer(s) purchase are:

Sale of Hangar is contingent upon final approval by City of Palmer Council.

5. Charges. Upon closing, the escrow agent shall charge the Seller(s) and/or Buyer(s) as
indicated by placing a mark in the appropriate column (if both Seller and Buyer column marked,
the costs will be divided equally).

BS
Document Preparation -x- -x- Discount Points

Recording Fee -x- x- Tax Registration

owner's Trtle tnsurance 8*-\J\Ic- HoA Fee ,li,tr^.,,

BS

Page 41 of 510



Lender's Title lnsurance

Bank Set-Up Fee

Annual Escrow Fee

Escrow Closing Fee

Origination Fee

Commitment Fee

Credit Report

Flood Certificate

Resale Certification

Home lnspec'tion

Appraisal n
Survey/As >,rilt

Assessments

_x_ x_ Smoke Detectors

Well Flow Test

Reserves

VA Funding Fee

Assumption Fee

Well/ Septic lnspection

Other:

Taxes for the cunent year, rents, insurance, interest, homeowners dues, mortgage reserves,
water and any other utilities constituting liens and security deposits, shall be pro' rated or
transfened as of the date of recodation of the deed. Possession of the property will occur on

recording, or September 28, 201 6.

6. T]tle and Deod. Seller(s) shall convey marketable title to the Property to Buyer(s) by wananty
deed free and clear of al! liens, charges and encumbrances, clouds and deEcts whatsoever,

except:

7. T]me. The closing date shall be on or before September 28,2016.|f Seller(s) is unable to
close or deliver possession of the Property to Buyer(s) by closing, other than for any reason
caused by the acts or omission of Buyer(s), Seller(s) shall return to Buyer(s) the earnest money
deposit.

8. Title Guarantv lnsurance. A tiUe insurance polacy in the amount of the purchase price issued
by Mat-Su Title Agency, LLC as agent for its underwriter wil! be issued to Buyer(s) at closing. lf
Seller(s) financing is being provided, a standad mortgagee tiUe policy will be issued to the
Seller(s) in the amount of the financing.

9. Preliminary Title Reoort. Seller(s) shall obtain fur Buyer(s) a commitment to issue the
required title policy ("title report") from Mat€u Tltle Agenry, LLC immediately upon the
execution of this Agreement. A copy will be provided to Seller(s) and Buyer(s). Within ten (10)
days from the receipt of said title report by Buyer(s), Buyer(s) shall notify Seller(s) and the title
company of any restrictions, reseruations, limitations, easements and conditions of record, ("title
defects) disclosed in the title report which are objectionable to Buyer(s). ln the event that
Buyer(s) so notifies Seller(s) of any title defects, Seller(s) shall have until the closing date to
cure or remove the title defects. Seller(s) shall be obligated to remove all title defects objec'ted
to by Buyer(s) or shall notiff Buyer(s) that such items will not be removed at or prior to closing in
which event, Buyer(s) shall be entiUed to retum of the eamest money deposit. Rights reserved
in bderal or State patents, govemmenta! building or use restrictions, and building or zoning
regulations and provisions shall not be deemed defiects or encumbran@s. Any defects or
encumbrances may be discharged at closing out of the purchase money.

10. Brokel's Commission. The Seller(s) and Buyer(s) represent trat no real estate broker was
involved in this transaction and that no brokerage ftes or other compensation is due any rcal
estate broker or any other person because of this transaction.

Page 42 of 510



11. Escrow Agent. This tftcfion shall be placed in escrow winl-Su TiUe Agency, LLC
("escrow agenf'). A copy ot this Agreement shall be deposited with the escrofl agent by the
Buyer(s), and this Agreement shall serve as the escrow instructions. The escrow agent may
additionally attach its standard escrow instructions.

12. Closing Documents - Funds. On or before the closing date, the escrow agent shall record
the deed and any other instruments required to be reorded and shall deliver to each of the
parties or their assigns, the funds and documents to which they shall be respectively entitled,
together with its escrow statement, provided that the escrow agent shallthen have on hand alt
funds and documents necessary to complete the transaction and provided the title company has
stated that it shall be in a position to and will issue and deliver, upon the filing of the deed of
record, the title insurance required hereunder.

13. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon Seller(s) and Buyer(s) and their
respective heirs, executors, administratoni, successors and assigns. Neither party shall assign
or transfer this Agreement without the wriften consent of the non-assigning party.

Buyerwill hold title as: Gary & Odette Jamieson , { {L)
L

22927 Glacier Mew Drive

Eagle River, Alaska gg577

14.Additiona1lbms:_

Printed Name Printed Name

signature Signature

P面nted Name Printed Name

Address:

Se‖er(s):

川dttS I`ψ 5%鴇 七
ρ移 ご≧ 蒻 花

"∫

Signature
タ .Jんの′

fo S∂
ん

Page 43 of 510



⌒ ハ

Phone:

Ema‖ : 夕OE耐 グ `ヴ
″

%
Time:

Purchase and Sale Agreement with
Eamest Money Deposit- Page of 4

グ ′t/6″

Page 44 of 510



Page 45 of 510



Page 46 of 510



ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF PROPRIETARY LEASE
AND TRANSFER OF CERTIFICATE OF MEMBERSⅡ IP

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUNIIPTION OF LEASE AND TRANSFER OF
CERTIFICATE OF MEMBERSHIP(the“ Assigmnent'')is made and entered into and effect市 e

as of the day of 2016, by and between CHERYL D. RIGGS,
PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE ESTATE OF JOHN HERBERT RIGGS (also
appearing of record as John Riggs), Deceased, Superior Court Case No. 3AN-14-02790PR,
("Assignor"), whose address is 1150 S. Colony Way #3, PMB 322, Palmer AK 99645, and
GARY A. JAMIESON and ODETTE M. JAMIESON, husband and wife, ("Assignee"), whose
address is22927 Glacier View Drive, Eagle River AK99577.

RECI.TALS

WHEREAS, Assignor is acting on behalf of the curent Lessee under that certain
Proprietary Lease Agreement (the "Lease") between Lessee John Riggs and Lessor Palmer
Hangars Owners Association, dated October 4, 2006, recorded October 12, 2006, Reception
Number 2006-029512-0, with respect to certain airplane hangar space described as

Unit No. 2,Lot 11, Block 3, Preliminary Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airport,
Palmer Recording District Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, and

WHEREAS, by mesne Assignments Palmer Hangars Owners Association obtained a
lease from the City of Palmer at the Palmer Airport as to the following described property

Lot ll, Block 3, Preliminary Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airport, Palmer
Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska;

and all terms and conditions of said Airport Lease and compliance therewith apply to this
Assignment and Assumption ofProprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of Membership, all
as more fully set forth in said Proprietary Lease; and

WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign the right, title, and interest of John Riggr under
the Proprietary Lease to Assignee, and fi.rther transfers the Certificate of Membership in and to
said Unit 2, and Assignee desires to accept and assume the right, title, and interest of Assignor
under the Proprietary Lease and Certificate of Membership;

Dalrymple Law, P.C. .927 S. Cobb Street, Palmer AK 99645 .907-745-6332 . www.matsulaw.com
Assignment and Assumption of Proprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of Membership, Page I

Page 47 of 510



NOW, TIIEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants and
agreements contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Assignment of Prqpriet?rv Lease a4!L Transter of Qertificate of
Mpmbership. Assignor hereby grants, transfers, conveys and assigns to Assignee all of the right,
title and interest of John Riggs as Lessee under the Proprietary Lease and Certificate- of
MembershiP, and Assignee accepts such assignment, and except as provided in Section 2 below,
assumes all obligations of Assignor thereunder, as ofthe effective date ofthis Assignment. Except
as provided in Section 2 with respect to Claims (as such term is hereinafter defined), Assignee
shall defend, indemni& and hold harmless Assignor from and against all Claims arising or
occurring under the Proprietary Lease and Certificate of Membership after the effective dati of
this Assignment.

Section 2- Coptinued Liabilitv of Assignor. Notwithstanding the provisions of
Section 1 above, Assignor expressly agrees that the Estate of John Herbert Riggs shall remain
liable for all obligations and claims (the "Claims"), including, but not limite-d to, indemnity
obligations, arising or occurring under the Proprietary Lease and Certificate of Membership prioi
to the effective date of this Assignment, irrespective of whether a Claim is made after the efieltive
date of this Assignment. Assignor shall defend, indemnifu and hold harmless Assignee from and
against such Claims.

Section 3. Permi{s, Laws. and Taxes.

3.01. The Assignee shall acquire and maintain, in good standing, all permits, licenses
and other entitlements necessary to the performance underlhis Agreemlnt. All actions taken
by the Assignee under this Agreement shall comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances,
rules and regulations, including, but not limited tt ifre Palmer Municipal Code, and all state
and/or federal laws and regulations. The Assignee shall pay all taxes pertaining to his
performance under this Agreement.

3.02. In accordance with and in keeping with Article 3, Compliance with Airport Lease,
of the P-almer Hangers Owners Association Pioprietary Lease witir George J. Galiagher and
Peggy J' Gallagher recorded October 22, 2007, Reception Number iOOl-Ozltn-0, the
Assignee acknowledges his understanding of and agrees to be bound by and to comply with all
terms of Palmer Municipal Airport Lease Agreement No. 05-02 (fhe eirport Lease), as if a
lessee thereunder. The Assignee also acknowledges and agrees his rights rnd., this proprietary
Lease are invalid and ineffective unless and until the City of Palmer executes a consent to
transfer the Proprietary Lease as set forth in the Airport Llase, and the Assignee, in writing,
agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Airport Lease.

Section 4. Other Instruments/Actions. The parties agree to execute such furtherreasonablei,st'umeffionableactions,andtomakeanyadditional
reasonable transfers as may be necessary to carry out the purpose and intent of this Assignment.

Dalrymple Law, P.C. '927 S. Cobb Street, Palmer AK99645 . 907-745-6332 . www.matsulaw.com
Assignment and Assumption of Proprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of UrrnU"rrt ip3ug. Z

Page 48 of 510



Section 5. I\4iscellaneous.

5.01. Governins LawRemedies. This Assignment and the rights of the parties under
it will be governed by and construed in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of
A]aska without giving effect to principles o. prorisions thereof relating to choice of law or conflict
of laws. In any action to enforce the provisions of this Assignment, the prevailing party shall be
entifled to reasonable attorney fees and court costs.

^5'92' lVaiver44epdmenls. Any waiver must be in writing, and any waiver by any
party of a breach of any provision of this Assignment shall not operate as or be construed to be a
waiyer of any other..breach of that provisiorior of any breach of any other provision of this
Assignment. The failtre of a party to insist upon strict udh..rrr.. to any term of this Assignment
on one or more occasions shall not be considered a waiver or deprive that party of tfri rigtrt
thereafter to insist upon stict adherence to that term or any other term of this Assignment. This
Assignment shall not be altered, modified or otherwis. u*.ndrd except by an instrument in writing
signed by both parties.

i'93: Bindine Effect: As.sisnmen-t. This Assignment and all of the provisions hereofshall be binding upon and in*e to *re benEfii of the pafii; hereto and their respective successors
and permitted assigns.

. . i'0a.' No Partnership. Joint Vqnfure. Etc. Nothing in this Assignment shall beintendedordeemedto.'.@,association,orothersiriitarrelationship
between the parties hereto.

Ⅷ 剛 ∬鋼肥 棚燃 絆
:刹拙 器 胤鵠淵

摯棚F認出訛謂魃 肥鷺鵡 Ltti織脚椒鷺

year flrよ ‖`11:I増|:‖キtWEREOF,the parties have executed this Asslglnent as Ofthe date and

Da■ymple Law,P.c.・ 927S,CObb Strect,Palmer AK 99645・
907‐745‐6332・ www.matSulaw.cOm

Assigmcnt and AsstttiOn ofProprietary Lcasc and Transfer ofcertiicate ofMembership,Page 3

Page 49 of 510



ASSIGNOR:ESTATE OFJOHN HERBERT RIGGS,Deceased,
Superior Court Case No。 3AN-14‐02790PR

CHERYL D. zuGGS, personal Representative

STATE OF ALASKA )

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
) SS.

The 
_foregoing instrument was acknowredged before me on

2016, by CHERYL D. RIGGS, pERSONef nppneseNia
JOHN HERBERT RIGGS, Deceased, Superior Court Case No. 3AN-14-02790PR, on behalfof the estate.

NOtary Public in and fbr Alaska

My COllrunissiOn Expires:

ASSIGNEE:

GARY A.JAMIESON
ODETTE M. JAMIESON

By

STATE OF ALASKA        )

THIRD Jl」DICIAL I)ISTRICT   'SS・

The fOregoing instmment was acknowledged before me On

2016,by GARY A.JANIIESON and ODETTE M.JAMIESON:

Notary Public in and fOr Alaska

My Commission Expires:

Record in Palmer Recording District.
Refurn to:
GARY A. JAMIESON and ODET-IE M. JAMIESON
22927 GlacierViewDrive, Eagle River XggSll

Dalrymple Law, P.c. '927 s.cobb Street, parmer AK99645. go7-?4s-6332. uruusalsurerv."o,Assignment and Assumption of Proprietury L.;; and rransfer of certificate of Membership, page 4

Page 50 of 510



一一ＯＮ
卜
劇
＞
一〓

Ｘ‘
Ｌ
Ｏ
【∞
Ｎ
‐つ
寺
〔
（い
０（）

卜
い
０
い‐∞
卜
べ
（卜
Ｏい
）

ｒ
Ｏ
い
い
０

一じ
場
”
【く

ぃｏ
“
ド
８
“
０
こ
く

０
０
Ｎ

Ｏ
〕
コ̈
∽

ｒ
ｍＯ
■
∽

Ｖ

ｏ
【
い

。り
Ｚ
【
．目
０
屋
日
〇

お

く
口
Ｚ
Ｏ
∽
い
“
日
“
〇
ぼ

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR TI・ IE STA羽E OF ALASKA

‐ IRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT

IN PROBA‐

In the Matter ofthe Estate

Of

John Herbert Riggs,

Deceased. case No. 3AN-14 - fi10 Pn

LETTERS TESTAMENTARY

The application for info.1.lal appointment ofCHERYL D.RIGGS as personal

representative ofthc abovc stylcd csセ■c having comc beforc this court,CHERYL D.

RIC}GS,is hereby appointed pcrsonal representatives ofthe Estate ofJohn Herbert

Riggs,tO seFVC Without bond.

DATED■is 16/da17 of ん●/   ,2014.

VERIFICAT10N

I hereby accept the duties and responsibilities of the office of personal

representativeof theESTATE OF John HerberlRiggs, which I will perform as

required by law, including but not lirnited to the following duties:

(a) to take possession and control ofthe decedents property as required by

AS 13.15.380, except as provided by AS 13.16.355;

ｌ
υ
降
―

―
―
―
―
‐

LETTERS TESTAMENTARY
ESTATE OFJOHN HERBERT RIGGS
Page l of3

―
―

縦

剛 mm鞭 午・
∞ples of this fOrmiV

CttRK想  釧b押ゴ

l hettby 驚]淋棚滞l∬
ぼ

′
′

Page 51 of 510



Ｘ
●Ｌ
Ｏ
【∞
Ｎ
‐０寸
い
（卜
００
）

卜
いつ
い
，∞卜Ｎ一（卜
〇
い
）

【
Ｏ
ｎ
い
０
〔壺
“
翼
く

ぃｏ
聟
田
ｏ
〓
ｏ
●
く

ｏ
Ｏ
Ｎ
３
「
∽
Ｊ
Ｒ
二
∽
Ｖ

Ｏ
一
一

。り
Ｚ
】
ぃ日
υ
【
』
角
Ｏ

ヽ
Ｆ
＜
口

Ｚ
Ｏ
り
壺
箋
餞
“
Ｏ
“

(b)to prOvide notices to hcirs and de宙 sces as required by AS 13.16.360,

except as providcaby AS 1 3.16.690:

(C) to prOvide notice to creditors as required by laЧらpublish notice when

required,and rcview and either accept or rdect Claims as required by AS

13.16.455 through 13.16.515:

(d)to advisetthe cott in w亘 ting ofthe persOnal representative's address

and telephone nllmber as required by Probate Rule 8:

(e)to ile ret_s fOr state estate taxes ifrequired by AS 43.31.121 and AS

43.31.250:

(f)to pay homestead,exempt prOperty and family allowances as required

by AS 13.11.125■rough 13.H。 140,cOsts Ofadl■ inistratiOn and Other

clailns as rcquired byン生S13.16.470 and distribute the assets Ofthe estate;

and,

/

/

/

/

/

/

〃

LETTERS TESTAMENTARY
ESTATE OFJOHN HERBERT RIGCS
Page 2 of3

Page 52 of 510



斎
〓
ｏ
【∞Ｎ
‘
ヾ
ｍ
ｒ
ｏ
ｏ

卜
い
つ
り
∞卜
【
Ｆ
ｏ
Ｏ

【０
い
い
０
“塵
認
】く
ご
“
筐
９
ち
Ｌ
く

０日
．降ｏ日３
染
彙
瞬
詳
鰐繁

(g) to close the estate as soon as appropriate as required by AS 13.L6.620

through 13.16.670.

I will file any required bond.

DA■ D November 14,

CHERYL
STA■ OF ALASKA

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT

assume the obligations set forth therein.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO or before me by
CHERYL DoRIGGS,who is personally known me, this November 14,
2014 at Anchorage, Alaska.

Notary ic in and fbr Alaska

LETTERS TESTAMENTARY
ESTATE OF JOHN HERBERT RIGGS
Page 3 of3

ＳＳ

＞

＞

＞

CHERYL D. RIGGS, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says
that she has read and understood the above Letters Testamentary and ,g...r to

My commission expires:

Page 53 of 510



Page 54 of 510



City of Palmer ● Palmer Municipal Airport 
231 W. Evergreen Avenue ● Palmer, AK 99645 

Phone: 907-745-3271     Fax: 907-745-0930 
 
 

CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT  
 
In consideration of and in reliance upon the above assumption and promises 
contained in this instrument, the City of Palmer hereby consents to the foregoing 
Assignment and Assumption of Proprietary Lease and Transfer of Certificate of 
Membership of Unit 2, Lot 11, Block 3, Plat for the Palmer Municipal Airport, Palmer 
Recording District, Third Judicial District, and State of Alaska from the Estate of 
John H. Riggs, (“Assignor”) to Gary A. and Odette M. Jamieson, (“Assignee”).  
 
Current Palmer Municipal Lease No 05-02 (The Airport Lease) is in Effect. Except 
as otherwise expressly stated herein, nothing in this consent to assignment of 
proprietary lease is intended to amend or alter any of the terms and conditions of 
the Airport Lease  or any amendments thereto previously executed by Lessor and 
Lessee. All terms and conditions remain in full force and effect.  
 
This consent to assignment of lease will not release the Assignor from obligations 
under the Airport Lease should the new Lessee default. In the event of the default 
of the Assignee, the lease agreement shall revert to the Assignor. 
 
 
 
     City of Palmer 
 
Date:______________________ ____________________________________ 
     Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 
     )ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )  
 
The foregoing Consent to Assignment of Proprietary Lease _________________ 
was acknowledged before me this _____day of _______, 2016, by 
__________________________. 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for Alaska 

My Commission 
Expires:_______________ 

 
 

Page 55 of 510



 

Page 56 of 510



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INS025 (201401)

8/4/2016

Conrad-Houston Insurance
507 W. Northern Lights Blvd.

Anchorage AK 99503

June Sellers
(907)276-7667 (907)258-3105

junes@chialaska.com

Palmer Hangars Owners Association
750 East Yukon Street

Palmer AK 99645

Alaska National Insurance Company 38733

A
X

X

X

X 16APS59659 1/18/2016 1/18/2017

1,000,000
100,000

5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

RE: Lot 11, Block 3, Palmer Municipal Airport, Palmer, Alaska 

Paul Houston/JUNE

City of Palmer 
Palmer Municipal Airport 
231 West Evergreen Avenue 
Palmer, AK  99645

fkelly@palmerak.org

Page 57 of 510



Certificate of Insurance

Certificate Holder:

Named Insured:

Policy Period: From To
Policy Number: 
Issuing Company:  

This is to certify that the policy(ies) listed herein have been issued providing coverage for the listed insured as further described. This
certificate of insurance is not an insurance policy and does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the policy(ies) listed herein.
Notwithstanding any requirement, term or condition of any contract, or other document with respect to which this certificate of insurance
may be concerned or may pertain, the Insurance afforded by the policy(ies) listed on this certificate is subject to all the terms, exclusions,
and conditions of such policy(ies).

Aircraft:
Year Make and Model

Reg
No Insured Value

$
$
$
$
$
$

Deductibles
NIM / IM Liability Limit

$
$
$
$
$
$

Certificate Number:   
Issued By and Date: 

Starr 10201  (6/06)
By _______________________________________________
                    (Authorized Representative)

Passenger
Sublimits

3353 Peachtree Road NE, Suite 1000
Atlanta, GA  30326

/$
/$
/$
/$
/$
/$

CITY OF PALMER
231 W. EVERGREEN AVE.
PALMER, AK  99645

GARY JAMIESON
22927 GLACIER VIEW DR.
EAGLE RIVER, AK  99577

FEBRUARY 11, 2016 FEBRUARY 11, 2017
1000318031-01

STARR INDEMNITY & LIABILITY COMPANY

N826AK2014 JUST AVIATION SUPERSTOL 1,000,000. 100,000.NIL / NIL100,000.

THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER IS INCLUDED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED UNDER LIABILITY COVERAGES, BUT ONLY AS
RESPECTS OPERATIONS OF THE NAMED INSURED.

THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER WILL BE PROVIDED WITH THIRTY (30) DAYS [TEN (10) IF FOR NON-PAYMENT]
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR MATERIAL CHANGE.

1.1
AUGUST 18, 2016 (RJ)

Page 58 of 510



Page 1 of 2 AM 16-063

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 16-063 

Subject:  Approving Board Member John Lee’s Resignation from the Board of Economic 
Development 

Agenda of:  September 13, 2016 

Council Action: ___________________________________________________ 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor Johnson – via City Clerk 

Date: August 25, 2016 Requested agenda date: September 13, 2016 

Department Information √: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 

Community Development 

Finance 

Fire Department 

Police Department 

Public Works 

Approved for presentation by: 

Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 

City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0 

This legislation (√): 
√ Has no fiscal impact Creates a positive impact in the amount of: $ 

Creates a negative impact in the amount of: $ 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted Affected line item(s): 

General fund unassigned balance (after requested budget modification): $ 

Enterprise unrestricted net position (after requested budget modification): $ 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 59 of 510



Page 2 of 2 AM 16-063

Summary Statement: Palmer Charter Chapter II Section 2.9 requires the council to approve 
resignations by members of the Board of Economic Development. 

John Lee has submitted his resignation effective August 25, 2016. 

The Clerk has begun the advertising process to fill the vacancy created by the resignation and 
will forward applications to the Mayor for nomination and to the council for confirmation.  

Administration Recommendation: Authorize Action Memorandum No. 16-063. 

Page 60 of 510



minutes minutes 

Page 61 of 510



Page 62 of 510



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska  August 23, 2016, Regular 
Meeting 

Page 1 of 5 

City Council Minutes 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

Regular Meeting 
August 23, 2016 

A. CALL TO ORDER

A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on August 23, 2016, at 7 pm in the 
council chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 

Mayor Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

B. ROLL CALL

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 

Richard Best  Brad Hanson 
Steve Carrington DeLena Johnson 
Linda Combs  Peter LaFrance 
Edna DeVries  

Also in attendance were the following: 

Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
Norma Alley, MMC, City Clerk  
Bernadette Packa, Deputy City Clerk 
Michael Gatti, City Attorney 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Combs. 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Action Memorandum No. 16-057: Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase
Twelve Dell Laptops and Associated Docking Equipment in the Amount of
$27,282.47, and to Purchase the Items Under the Governmental and Proprietary
Procurements Section of Palmer Municipal Code 3.21.230, by Attaching to the
National Association of State Procurement Officers (NASPO) Contract Pricing

b. Action Memorandum No. 16-058: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and
Enter into a Contract with Bering Marine Corporation for the Purchase and Delivery
of 150 Tons of Road Salt in the Amount of $23,707.50

c. Resolution No. 16-021: Confirming the Appointment of Election Officials for the
City of Palmer Regular Election on Tuesday, October 4, 2016 (IM 16-034)

2. Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. August 9, 2016, Regular Meeting

Page 63 of 510



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska  August 23, 2016, Regular 
Meeting 

Page 2 of 5 

Main Motion: To approve consent agenda and minutes 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by: Hanson 
Action: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Hanson, Johnson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

Notation of a scrivener’s error in Action Memorandum No. 16-057 was corrected to read 
$27,282.47. 

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

F. REPORTS

Item 1 – City Manager’s Report 

City Manager Nathan Wallace: 
• Highlighted his written report;
• Noted the audit presentation was pushed back until late September or early October;
• Commented on attendance of the Manager’s meeting at AML Summer Conference;
• Commented on the Federal Aviation Administration’s approval of the Airport Layout Plan;
• Reminded everyone of the upcoming open house for the Wastewater Treatment Plant

Facilities Plan and addressed publicity efforts made to notice the meeting; and
• Fielded questions from the Council.

Item 2 – City Clerk’s Report 

City Clerk Norma Alley: 
• Provided an update on the election process and budget preparations.

Item 3 – Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Johnson:  
• Commented on attendance of the Mayor’s Meeting at the AML Summer Conference; and
• Addressed the need for the City of Palmer to work with the community to develop a list

of priorities, as well as the City’s priorities, before going into the budget season.

Item 4 – City Attorney’s Report 

Michael Gatti:  
• Commented on attendance of the AML Summer Conference and issues discussed.

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Debra McGhan, Executive Director of the Alaska Avalanche Information Center 
• Spoke to September being National Emergency Preparedness Month; and
• Provided flyers for the 2016 Emergency Preparedness Expo being held at the Menard

Sports Center in Wasilla.

Page 64 of 510



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                   August 23, 2016, Regular 
Meeting                                                                                                                                
 Page 3 of 5 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Item 1 – Resolution No. 16-022: A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Authorizing the 
City Manager to Accept and Appropriate Funding in the Amount of $50,000 from Three Grants 
as a Pass-Through for Grow Palmer (IM 16-035) 
 
Mayor Johnson opened the public hearing. Seeing no one come forward, the public hearing was 
closed. 
 
Discussion ensued. Concerns addressed included use of a project manager who was not a 
member of City staff or the Council, grant management fees, and contact information listed 
within the grant agreement. City Manager Wallace addressed the Council’s concerns. 
 

Main Motion: To approve Resolution No. 16-022 
Moved by: DeVries 

Seconded by: Best 
Action: Motion carried by a 5-2 voice vote. 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Hanson, Johnson, LaFrance 
Opposed: Combs, DeVries 

 
I. ACTION MEMORANDA 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 16-054: Extending the Contract for Audit Services with BDO 
USA, LLC for The Second Additional Year as Specified in the Request for Proposals (RFP) for 
Audit Services and Original Contract Approved by the Palmer City Council on September 24, 
2013 
 

Main Motion: To authorize Action Memorandum 16-054 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by: Hanson 
Action: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Hanson, Johnson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
Item 2 – Action Memorandum 16-061: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and 
Execute a Six Month Contract Amendment for Dispatch Services with the Matanuska Susitna 
Borough in the Amount of $450,000.00 
 

Main Motion: To authorize Action Memorandum 16-061 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Carrington 
Action: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Hanson, Johnson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
 
 

Page 65 of 510



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska  August 23, 2016, Regular 
Meeting 

Page 4 of 5 

Item 3 – Action Memorandum 16-055: Discussing the Residency Requirement of the City 
Clerk Position 

Main Motion: To authorize Action Memorandum 16-055 as amended 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by: Combs 
Action: Motion carried by a 4-3 voice vote. 

In favor: Best, Combs, Johnson, LaFrance 
Opposed: Carrington, DeVries, Hanson 

Primary Amendment #1: To change the Action Memorandum to read: 
The City Council approve requests the City Clerk reside 
within five miles of the City limits. 

Moved by: Johnson 
Seconded by: Best 

Action: Motion carried by a 4-3 voice vote. 
In favor: Best, Combs, Johnson, LaFrance 

Opposed: Carrington, DeVries, Hanson 

The City Council acknowledged Ordinance No. 16-010 is not applicable to the current City Clerk 
due to no retroactive clause written in the ordinance and the employment agreement being 
signed prior to enactment of the ordinance.  An amendment was approved requesting the City 
Clerk live within five miles of the city limits. 

J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

K. NEW BUSINESS

Item 1 – Committee of the Whole: Discussion on the 2017 Budget Planning Priorities 

City Manager Wallace handed out and provided an overview of documents addressing Budget 
Priorities for 2017 and Comprehensive Plan Visions.  

L. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

2016 Emergency Preparedness Expo flyer 
Budget Priorities 2017 – Guiding Thoughts 
City of Palmer Comprehensive Plan Visions 

M. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Eugene Carl Haberman: 
• Addressed concerns regarding public meetings held in the area.

N. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

Council Member Best 
• Commented on attendance of the AML Summer Conference;

Page 66 of 510



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska  August 23, 2016, Regular 
Meeting 

Page 5 of 5 

• Highlighted a presentation by the Commissioner of the Department of Corrections
addressing plans following the closing of the Palmer Correctional Facility;

• Addressed Senate Bill 91 (SB91) which allows for inmates to be fitted with monitoring
systems and then released into the general public;

• Pointed out that municipalities would be responsible for monitoring the inmates as well
as funding the effort without reimbursement; and

• Reminded everyone to be aware of the increase of pedestrians due to the fair.

Council Member LaFrance: 
• Commented on the new stop light on Arctic and Alaska; and
• Commended staff on obtaining approval of the Airport Layout Plan.

Council Member Carrington: 
• Addressed concerns regarding Community Grants.

Council Member DeVries: 
• Congratulated Council Member Combs on her appointment to the Commission on Aging.

Council Member Combs: 
• Expressed excitement about being appointed to the Commission on Aging;
• Spoke to attendance of the AML Summer Conference;
• Spoke to attendance of the Public Hearing on the Skilled Nursing Facility;
• Commented on attendance of the Hot August Summer Nights Car Show;
• Spoke to the next Chamber of Commerce meeting to be held at the fairgrounds; and
• Reminded everyone of the state fair parade scheduled for August 27, 2016.

Mayor Johnson: 
• Commented on air brake signage which is now in place.

O. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:49 pm. 

Approved this 23rd day of August, 2016. 

___________________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk  

___________________________________ 
DeLena Johnson, Mayor  

Page 67 of 510



Page 68 of 510



reports reports 

Page 69 of 510



Page 70 of 510



Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
August 24th-Sept 12th, 2016 

BOARDS and COMMISSIONS 

Board of Economic Development (1 Aug): 
• Heard a presentation by Michael Burke, MTA Chief Executive Officer.
• Adopted Resolution 16-002: Supporting the establishment of a Skilled Nursing Facility.
• Reviewed Chapter 2.30 of the Palmer Municipal Code establishing the Board of

Economic Development. Requested Chair send memo to City Clerk about meeting with
all board chairmen.

• Changed regular meeting date in from September 5 to September 12 to avoid conflict
with Labor Day

Next meeting:  11 Sept 

Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Board (4 Aug): 
• Heard a presentation by Darrell Lewis on status of National Historic Landmark Application.
• Members Aube-Trammell and Newman reported on bicycle rack grant application.
• Conducted a general discussion on establishing a City recreational facility reservation process.

Next meeting: 1 Sept 

Planning and Zoning Commission (18 Aug): 
• Approved Resolution No. 16-005: A Resolution of the Palmer Planning and Zoning

Commission  A Conditional Use Permit to add a Car Wash to the Chevron property
located    in the CG – General Commercial Zoning District at 439 W. Evergreen
Avenue, Palmer  (2nd Public Hearing).

• Considered text amendment to PMC 17.57.040, Conditional Uses to show Commercial
Recreational Facilities as a separate listed conditional use in the  AG-Agricultural
district to be listed as 17.57.040(O).

• Continued discussion of Tiny Houses in Palmer.
• Postponed their discussion of appropriate Zoning District for Retail Businesses Selling

Marijuana  Accessories to September 15, 2016 meeting..
• Under Plat Reviews - Supported IM 16-012: Preliminary Plat Review: The request is

to remove the common lot lines between Lots 1-6, Block 12, ARRC #1, to create one
lot to be called Lot 1A, Block 12,  ARRC #1, located inside Palmer city limits .

Next meeting: 15 Sept 

Airport Advisory Commission (25 August): 
• Discussed moving forward with two Airport Signs, North and South Ramp.  Approximate

estimated total cost is $4,750 and if all businesses and SOA, FAA participate at $100 per
business plaque for both signs it would cover $4,000 of the costs.  Reaching out to
businesses this month.

Page 71 of 510



Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
August 24th-Sept 12th, 2016 

• Discussed exploring the concept of a small inexpensive “fly in campground”.
• Continuing the work on revised Airport Regulations
• AAC Chair to present at September 13th City Council meeting

Next meeting: 22 Sept 

Dispatch RFP update: 
No formal news, but MSB purchasing has reviewed proposals.  There may be an 
announcement this month.  

Railroad extension to Palmer Depot: 
Gov Walker has mentioned in several speeches his support of extending the rail into Palmer.  
DOT and the AKRR met with a group of Palmer representatives as a result of this. They were 
not encouraging as to funding, but seemed willing to discuss options and what scheduling 
might have to look like to be able to qualify for federal funding.  They also mentioned that a 
federal grant would require a 10% match.  For regular rail service to Palmer, the project cost 
was $3.5M.  We will continue discussions to further determine feasibility. 

Page 72 of 510



City of Palmer Construction Projects in Progress 

As of Sep 06, 2016  

Sept 6, 2016   Page 1 of 3 
Information in bold is revised from previous report. 

Project Status % 
Complete 

On 
Schedule 

Within 
Budget 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDED BY STATE GRANTS or LOANS 

Sherrod Area Water and Street Improvements Phase 4 (ADEC Grant/Loan) 
This project will replace old cast iron water mains on E. Beaver Ave. and N. Chugach 
and N. Bailey Sts. The project is underway and moving along as scheduled. 
N. Bonanza St. was added to the project and construction has started.

60% Yes Yes 

Bogard Road Water Main Extension – Phase II  (14-DC-125) 
The Phase II water main extension is complete, but will require construction of a 
booster station under a separate project to provide adequate pressure and flow for 
the western portion of the project.  The City will use remaining State grant funds to 
design the pressure booster station.  Property acquisition costs are not grant-eligible. 
Reviewing location options for booster station.  Construction of the booster station 
will require approximately $500,000 in additional funding.      

70% Yes Yes 

Airport Pavement Repairs  (15-DC-128) 
These grant funds will be used as a portion of the match for the Runway 16-34 
repaving project. 

0% 

Public Safety Building Repair   (15-DC-130) 
The second phase of the project is underway and will replace pneumatic HVAC 
controls and improve ventilation and cooling in the State Trooper’s server room.  
Contractor Triple V Construction contract extended to Aug. 31, due to part 
on order.      

85% Yes Yes 

Public Works Storage Building Upgrades       (15-DC-131) 
This $150,000 State grant will improve the electrical system and insulation in the 
Public Works storage building that houses solid waste equipment.  No activity to date. 
Possible Fall project.   

0% 

Building Improvement Project – Phase II   (15-DC-132) 
Project is complete. Awaiting any final bills from Wolf Architecture 100% Yes Yes 

Page 73 of 510



City of Palmer Construction Projects in Progress 

As of Sep 06, 2016  

Sept 6, 2016   Page 2 of 3 
Information in bold is revised from previous report. 

WWTP Lab Replacement     (15-DC-133) 
This $145,000 State grant will construct a building to replace the existing lab and 
office building at the wastewater treatment plant.  The grant funding is not adequate 
to build a replacement building.  Staff is examining alternatives such as modular 
construction.  

0% 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDED BY CITY OF PALMER 

Waste Water Treatment Plant Master Plan 
The final draft plan is complete and updated as of Sept. 01, 2016 100% Yes Yes 

Palmer Library Boiler Replacement 
This $50,000 project will replace the boiler in the Palmer Library. We expect front end 
documents and bid package with mechanical specs in the coming weeks. Once these 
docs are received, we will bid out the project for work in May’17 

15% 

Randy Thom Flight Service Station Heating System Replacement 
This $30,000 project will replace the Flight Service Station (FSS) heating system. We 
expect front end documents and bid package with mechanical specs in the coming 
weeks. Once these docs are received, we will bid out the project for work in May’17 

15% 

Randy Thom Flight Service Station Interior Improvements 
This project is funded and will remove asbestos in FSS flooring, replace carpeting and 
paint the interior and exterior.  We expect front end documents and bid package with 
FAA requirements by mid-Sept. Once these docs are received, we will bid out the 
project  

15% 

City Hall Office Renovation 
This $40,000 project will make improvements at City Hall, primarily in the Finance 
Department, to improve work spaces.  No activity. 

0% 

City Hall and Fire Station 3-1 Parking Lot Upgrade 
This $100,000 project will replace subbase and pavement in the City Hall and Fire 
Station 3-1 parking lots.  PW has contacted Howdie Corps and will try to incorporate 

0% 

Page 74 of 510



City of Palmer Construction Projects in Progress 
 

As of Sep 06, 2016  
 

Sept 6, 2016                Page 3 of 3 
Information in bold is revised from previous report. 

 

the City Hall/Fire Station repave with the paving of the new medical facility. Expected 
walk through of the area next week. 

Compression Brake Signage 
Signs and required TCPs have been acquired. Crew will assemble and install sign on 
Bogard, NLT Friday, Aug 19th. Based on the time required to prep the area and 
conduct the install. 1x sign has been installed. The sign on the North side of 
town will be installed on Tues, Sept 6. The other 2x signs will be installed 
after the State Fair and when the Borough has completed moving rock to 
the Matanuska River erosion area.    
 

75%   

 

Page 75 of 510



Page 76 of 510



public 
hearings  

public 
hearings  

 
 

Page 77 of 510



 

Page 78 of 510



Page 1 of 2 IM 16-037 

City of Palmer  
Information Memorandum No. 16-037 

Resolution No. 16-023 

Subject:  Resolution No. 16-023: A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Accepting and 
Appropriating $6,543.48 from the City of Houston to Provide Emergency Dispatch Services for the 
Period of July 1, 2016 Through December 31, 2016 

Agenda of:  September 13, 2016 

Council Action: ___________________________________________________ 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 

Date: August 12, 2016 Requested agenda date: September 13, 2016 

Department Information: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 

Community Development 

X Finance 8/11/16 

X Police Department 8/11/16 

Public Works 

Approved for presentation by: 

Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 

City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ $6,543.48 

This legislation (√): 
Has no fiscal impact X Creates a positive impact in the amount of: $ $6,543.48 

Negative impact in the amount of: $  

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s): 
X Not budgeted Affected line item(s): 01-00-00-3422 

General fund assigned balance (after requested budget modification): $ 

Enterprise unrestricted net position (after requested budget modification): $ 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 79 of 510



 
Page 2 of 2                  IM 16-037 
  
 
 
 

Attachment(s):    
 Resolution No. 16-023  
 City of Houston Action Memorandum 16-13 
 Palmer / Houston Dispatch Agreement 

 
Summary statement: The City of Palmer and the City of Houston have been in a contractual 
relationship in which Palmer provides dispatch services to the City of Houston Fire Department.  
The most recent contract expired on June 30, 2016, but Palmer has continued to provide dispatch 
services since then. 
 
The City of Houston has historically paid roughly one percent of Palmer’s overall dispatch 
expenses.  Last year the amount of the contract was $13,087.  However, it is uncertain whether 
Palmer will continue to provide such services to Houston past January, 2017, due to the Mat-Su 
Borough’s recent dispatch RFP.   
 
This the case, a month to month agreement with the City of Houston satisfies several needs:  It 
allows Palmer to continue to provide a service to another city while not agreeing to contractual 
demands it might be unable to meet.  It allows the City of Houston to continue receiving 
emergency dispatch services.  It allows Houston to compensate Palmer for these services yet not 
expend funds for a performance period which might be shorter than a long contract period 
anticipates.   
 
A sum of $1,090.58 is the monthly amount Houston will pay Palmer for dispatch services under 
this agreement.  This is the amount of the prior contract total divided by twelve to reach a monthly 
rate.  This month to month agreement is anticipated to end on or around December 31, 2016.   
By this time the results of the Mat-Su Borough RFP for dispatch services should be known, and a 
more stable contract period should be feasible if Palmer is the successful proposer.  There are no 
changes to the most recent agreement between Palmer and Houston other than the price and 
length of the contract.  Total funds to be accepted and appropriated are $6,543.48    
 
 
Administration recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 16-023 

Page 80 of 510



_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                                        Resolution No. 16-023 

Introduced by: City Manager 
Date: Sept 13, 2016 

Action:  
Vote: 

Yes: No: 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-023 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PALMER CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTING AND APPROPRIATING 
$6,543.48 FROM THE CITY OF HOUSTON TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY DISPATCH SERVICES 
FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 

WHEREAS, the contract between the Cities of Palmer and Houston for Palmer to provide 
emergency dispatch services to Houston expired June 30, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Houston Fire Department will continue to require dispatch services; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer desires to provide emergency dispatch services to the City of 
Houston in the continuing interests of public safety; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council to accept and appropriate 
monthly payments in the amount of $1,090.58 from the City of Houston to be used to provide 
emergency dispatch services to the City of Houston through December 31, 2016 

ORIGINAL SCOPE OF WORK 

The City proposes to use the funds from the City of Houston to provide emergency dispatch service 
for the Houston Fire Department for the period of July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

BUDGET 
City of Houston:  $6,543.48 
City of Palmer:     _____________________________________________$0.00 

Total Project Budget:  $6,543.48 

Passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska, this 13th day of September, 
2016. 

 DeLena Johnson, Mayor 
___________ 

Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 81 of 510



Page 82 of 510



Page 83 of 510



Page 84 of 510



Page 85 of 510



Page 86 of 510



Page 87 of 510



Page 88 of 510



Page 89 of 510



HOUSTON/PALMER DISPATCH SERVICES ADDENDUM NO. 1     Page 1 of 2 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Addendum to the Cooperative Services Agreement for Dispatch Services between 
the City of Houston and the City of Palmer. 

It is hereby mutually agreed that effective July 1, 2016, the Cooperative Services Agreement for 
Dispatch Services for FY17 between the City of Houston and the City of Palmer, is hereby 
extended on a month to month basis.  The City of Houston shall pay to the City of Palmer, for 
dispatch services, the sum of one thousand ninety dollars and fifty eight cents ($1,090.58) for 
each month services are provided.  

All other terms and conditions shall remain in full force and effect. 

CITY OF HOUSTON 

_______________________   _______________________ 
Virgie Thompson, Mayor    Date 

STATE OF ALASKA ) 
) ss 

Third Judicial District ) 
Matanuska-Susitna Borough ) 

On __________________________, 2016, Virgie Thompson, Mayor, personally appeared before me, who 
is personally known to me to be the signer of the above document, and he acknowledged that she did sign 
this addendum. 

_______________________________ 
Notary Public 

My commission expires:___________ 

Page 90 of 510



HOUSTON/PALMER DISPATCH SERVICES ADDENDUM NO. 1     Page 2 of 2 

CITY OF PALMER 

_______________________________ __________________________ 
Nathan E. Wallace, City Manager Date 

STATE OF ALASKA ) 
) ss 

Third Judicial District ) 
Matanuska-Susitna Borough ) 

On __________________________, 2016, Nathan E. Wallace, City Manager, personally appeared before 
me, who is personally known to me to be the signer of the above document, and he acknowledged that he 
did sign this addendum. 

_______________________________ 
Notary Public 

My commission expires:___________ 

Page 91 of 510



Page 92 of 510



Page 93 of 510



Page 94 of 510


	01 Packetcover - Regular Meeting
	02 Blank page
	03 2016-0913 Agenda Regular Meeting
	04 Consent Agenda Cover
	05 IM 16-036
	06 Ord. 16-007 RV Parking
	06 RV Ordinance 16-007
	07 AM 16 056 Shumaker - 2016
	08 Robert Shumaker Agricultural Lease 2016 Draft
	09 Exhibit A Shumaker 1
	9-13-16 Council Packet - Reduced
	Agenda
	IM 16-036
	Ord. 16-007 RV Parking

	AM 16-056 Shumaker Lease
	Supporting Documents

	AM 16-062 PHA Lease Assumption Unit 2
	Supporting Documents

	AM 16-063 Lee Resignation
	Minutes 8-23-16
	City Manager Report
	IM 16-037 Houston Dispatch
	Res. 16-023 Houston Dispatch
	Supporting Documents

	IM 16-039 Wastewater Facility Plan 2016 Update  (002)
	Reso 16-024 WWTP Facility Plan 2016 Update
	Res 16-024 WWTP Facility Plan Update_FINAL_09_01_2016



	10 Exhibit A Shumaker 2
	11 AM 16-062 PHA Lease Assumption Unit 2
	12 AM 16-062 Recorded Proprietary lease
	13 AM 16-062 Purchase Agmt
	14 AM 16-062 Tenant Info Sheet
	15 AM 16-062 Assign & assump
	16 AM 16-062 PHA City Consent to Assign Unit 2
	16.1 AM 16-062 PHOA Approval
	17 AM 16-062 Certificate of Insurance PHOA
	18 AM 16-062 Certificate of Insurance Jamieson
	19 AM 16-063 Lee Resignation
	20 Minutes Cover
	21 8-23-16 Regular Meeting Minutes
	City of Palmer, Alaska

	22 Reports Cover
	23 City Manager Report
	23.1 Construction Projects in Progress 081516
	24 Public Hearings Cover
	24.1 IM 16-037 Houston Dispatch
	25 Res. 16-023 Houston Dispatch
	26 FY16 Agreement Dispatch Services Palmer
	26 Res 16-023 FY16 Agt Dispatch Services Palmer
	27 Addendum No. 1
	27 Res. 16-023 Addendum No. 1
	28 AM 16-13 Approving extension of Palmer Dispatch Agreement
	28 Res. 16-0230 Houston AM 16-13 Approval of Extension
	30 New Business
	31 IM 16-039 Wastewater Facility Plan 2016 Update  (002)
	32 Reso 16-024 WWTP Facility Plan 2016 Update
	33 Res 16-024 WWTP Facility Plan Update_FINAL_09_01_2016



